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UNITED STATES  
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION  

Washington, D.C. 20549  

FORM 8-K  
(and FORM 8-K/A)  

CURRENT REPORT  

Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934  

Date of Report (Date of earliest event reported):  

This report constitutes a Current Report on Form 8-K dated August 1, 2002 and Amendment No. 1 to Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K 
dated July 1, 2002 and filed July 15, 2002  

CenturyTel, Inc.  

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)  

 

100 CenturyTel Drive, Monroe, Louisiana 71203  
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)  

Registrant's telephone number, including area code (318) 388-9000  

Item 2. Acquisition or Disposition of Assets.  

Wireless Disposition  

On August 1, 2002, CenturyTel, Inc. (the "Company") completed the sale of substantially all of its wireless operations to an affiliate of 
ALLTEL Corporation ("Alltel"). The Company agreed on March 19, 2002 to sell its wireless operations to Alltel for $1.65 billion in cash. Due 
to a cross-ownership restriction that precluded the sale of one minority-owned market, the Company received approximately $1.58 billion in 
connection with the transaction (which the Company expects to be $1.255 billion after-tax). Alltel has agreed to purchase this minority interest 
from the Company for approximately $68 million if, among other things, the Federal Communications Commission waives the cross-
ownership restriction prior to February 1, 2003. No assurance can be given that this sale will occur. Of the $1.58 billion of cash consideration, 
$11 million was paid by partners in the Company's markets that exercised "first refusal" purchase rights, and the balance was paid by Alltel.  

In connection with this transaction, the Company divested its (i) interests in its majority-owned and operated cellular systems, which at June 
30, 2002 served approximately 783,000 customers and had access to approximately 7.8 million pops (as defined in the Company's most recent 
10-K Report), (ii) minority cellular equity interests representing approximately 1.8 million pops at June 30, 2002, and (iii) licenses to provide 
Personal Communications Services ("PCS") covering 1.3 million pops in Wisconsin and Iowa. Following the sale, the Company continues to 
retain all of its local multi-point distribution system licenses covering approximately 12.6 million pops, and PCS licenses covering 
approximately 1.7 million pops.  

The Company intends to use a portion of the proceeds received from the sale of its wireless operations to finance the pending $1.159 billion 
acquisition of access lines in the state of Missouri from Verizon Communications, Inc. ("Verizon"), which is expected to close on or about 
August 31, 2002.  

The Company's press release announcing the completion of the wireless sale transaction is filed as Exhibit 99.1 hereto.  

   Louisiana             1-7784              72-065 1161 
(State or other     (Commission File       (IRS Emp loyer 
jurisdiction of          Number)         Identifica tion No.)  
 incorporation) 



Verizon Acquisitions  

On July 1, 2002, an affiliate of the Company purchased from affiliates of Verizon assets comprising all of Verizon's local exchange telephone 
operations in the state of Alabama for approximately $1.0 billion cash. See the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 1, 2002 and 
filed July 15, 2002 for additional information concerning this transaction. On or about August 31, 2002, the Company is expected to 
consummate the acquisition of all of Verizon's local exchange telephone operations in the state of Missouri for approximately $1.159 billion 
cash.  



Item 7. Financial Statements and Exhibits  

(a) Financial statements of properties acquired or to be acquired  

Verizon's Alabama Operations  

1. Report of Independent Auditors.  

2. Statements of Selected Assets, Selected Liabilities and Parent Funding as of March 31, 2002 and December 31, 2001.  

3. Statements of Income for the three months ended March 31, 2002 and 2001 and the year ended December 31, 2001.  

4. Statements of Parent Funding for the three months ended March 31, 2002 and the year ended December 31, 2001.  

5. Statements of Cash Flows for the three months ended March 31, 2002 and 2001 and the year ended December 31, 2001.  

6. Notes to Financial Statements.  

Verizon's Missouri Operations  

1. Report of Independent Auditors.  

2. Statements of Selected Assets, Selected Liabilities and Parent Funding as of March 31, 2002 and December 31, 2001.  

3. Statements of Income for the three months ended March 31, 2002 and 2001 and the year ended December 31, 2001.  

4. Statements of Parent Funding for the three months ended March 31, 2002 and the year ended December 31, 2001.  

5. Statements of Cash Flows for the three months ended March 31, 2002 and 2001 and the year ended December 31, 2001.  

6. Notes to Financial Statements.  

(b) Unaudited Pro Forma Consolidated Condensed Financial Information  

1. Introduction.  

2. Pro Forma Consolidated Condensed Statement of Income for the year ended December 31, 2001.  

3. Pro Forma Consolidated Condensed Statement of Income for the three months ended March 31, 2002.  

4. Pro Forma Consolidated Condensed Balance Sheet as of March 31, 2002.  

5. Notes to Unaudited Pro Forma Consolidated Condensed Financial Information.  

(c) Exhibits  

 

In connection with the preparation of the special purpose financial statements presented below, Verizon made numerous assumptions and 
allocations where specific data was not available pertaining to the acquired assets. Because of the significant amount of allocations and 
estimates used to prepare these special purpose financial statements and because the Company will operate these assets under a different 

2.1(a)    Stock Purchase Agreement, dated March 19,  2002, between 
          CenturyTel, Inc. and Alltel Communication s, Inc. (incorporated  
          by reference to Registrant's Current Repo rt on Form 8-K filed 
          March 22, 2002). 
 
2.1(b)    Amendment No. 1 to Stock Purchase Agreeme nt, dated July 31, 
          2002, between CenturyTel, Inc. and Alltel  Communications, 
          Inc., included herein. 
 
23.1      Consent of Ernst & Young LLP 
 
99.1      Press release announcing the disposition of the Company's 
          wireless operations. 



operating and management structure, they may not reflect the financial position and results of operations of the acquired properties after such 
properties are acquired by the Company.  
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Report of Independent Auditors  

The Board of Directors and Shareowners  
Verizon South Inc.  
and  
Contel of the South, Inc.  

We have audited the accompanying special-purpose statement of selected assets, selected liabilities and parent funding of Verizon's Alabama 
Operations (the Exchanges), a combination of carved-out components of Verizon South Inc. and Contel of the South, Inc. (together, the 
Companies) as of December 31, 2001, and the related statements of income, parent funding and cash flows for the year then ended. These 
financial statements are the responsibility of the Companies' management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial 
statements based on our audit.  

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those standards require that we plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit 
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes 
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.  

As described in Note 2, the accompanying special-purpose financial statements were prepared for inclusion in CenturyTel, Inc.'s (CenturyTel) 
Form 8-K for purposes of complying with the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission as required by Rule 3-05 of 
Regulation S-X in connection with an asset purchase agreement between CenturyTel of Alabama L.L.C., a wholly owned subsidiary of 
CenturyTel and the Companies. The financial statements include allocations of certain indirectly attributable amounts on bases determined by 
management of the Companies.  

In our opinion, the special-purpose financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the selected assets, selected 
liabilities and parent funding of Verizon's Alabama Operations as of December 31, 2001, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for 
the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.  

 

Verizon's Alabama Operations Statements of Selected Assets, Selected Liabilities and Parent Funding  

 
(Dollars in Thousands)  

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP 
 
April 24, 2002, except for Note 1, 
as to which the date is July 1, 2002 

                                                     March 31, 2002     December 31, 2001  
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------  
                                                       (Unaudited)         (Audited) 
 
Selected Assets 
Current assets: 
   Accounts receivable, net of allowance of 
     $5,444 and $5,590, respectively                  $       37,819     $       40,574 
   Materials and supplies                                        961                876 
   Prepaid expenses                                            3,788              5,397 
   Deferred activation charges - current                       4,371              4,385 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------  
Total current assets                                          46,939             51,232 
 
Property, plant and equipment, net                           245,457            243,235 
 
Prepaid pension asset                                         34,141             33,273 
Deferred activation charges - noncurrent                       8,502              8,428 
Other assets                                                       -                 34 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------  
Total selected assets                                 $      335,039     $      336,202 
=================================================== ======================================  
 
Selected Liabilities and Parent Funding 
Current liabilities: 
   Accounts payable                                   $        5,323     $        6,533 
   Advance billings and customer deposits                      6,853              7,076 
   Accrued payroll-related costs                               5,001              7,772 
   Deferred activation revenues - current                      4,371              4,385 
   Other current liabilities                                  12,019             12,208 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------  
Total current liabilities                                     33,567             37,974 



 

See accompanying notes.  

 
Employee benefit obligations                                  28,352             28,384 
Deferred activation revenues - noncurrent                      8,502              8,428 
Other liabilities                                                691                649 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------  
 
Total selected liabilities                                    71,112             75,435 
 
Parent funding                                               263,927            260,767 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------  
 
Total selected liabilities and parent funding         $      335,039     $      336,202 
=================================================== ======================================  



Verizon's Alabama Operations Statements of Income  

 
(Dollars in Thousands)  

 

See accompanying notes.  

                                                                          Year ended 
                                         Three Mont hs ended March 31      December 31  
                                             2002           2001             2001 
--------------------------------------------------- ----------------------------------  
                                                 (U naudited)               (Audited) 
Operating Revenues 
Local services                        $    36,152      $  34,998         $   143,612 
Network access services                    20,738         24,608              90,952 
Long-distance services                      1,460          1,734               6,623 
Other services                              3,662          4,596              15,054 
--------------------------------------------------- ----------------------------------  
Total operating revenues                   62,012         65,936             256,241 
 
Operating Expenses 
Cost of services                           14,412         17,351              70,874 
Selling, general and administrativ          7,448         10,019              37,816 
Depreciation and amortization               9,015          9,019              36,542 
--------------------------------------------------- ----------------------------------  
 
Total operating expenses                   30,875         36,389             145,232 
--------------------------------------------------- ----------------------------------  
 
Operating income                           31,137         29,547             111,009 
 
Interest expense, net                       2,628          2,028               9,504 
Other (income) expense                         (6)           (29)                837 
--------------------------------------------------- ----------------------------------  
 
Income before income taxes                 28,515         27,548             100,668 
 
Income taxes                               11,155         10,864              39,892 
--------------------------------------------------- ----------------------------------  
 
Net income                            $    17,360      $  16,684         $    60,776 
=================================================== ==================================  



Verizon's Alabama Operations Statements of Parent Funding  

 
(Dollars in Thousands)  

 

See accompanying notes.  

                    For the Three Months ended Marc h 31, 2002 
                      and the Year ended December 3 1, 2001 
--------------------------------------------------- ------------------------- 
Balance at December 31, 2000                                      $  235,211 
   Net income (audited)                                               60,776 
   Net transfers to GTE Corporation (audited)                        (35,220)  
--------------------------------------------------- ------------------------- 
 
Balance at December 31, 2001 (audited)                               260,767 
   Net income (unaudited)                                             17,360 
   Net transfers to GTE Corporation (unaudited)                      (14,200)  
--------------------------------------------------- ------------------------- 
 
Balance at March 31, 2002 (unaudited)                             $  263,927 
=================================================== ========================= 



Verizon's Alabama Operations Statements of Cash Flows  

 
(Dollars in Thousands)  

 

 

See accompanying notes.  

                                                                         Year ended 
                                         Three Mont hs ended March 31      December 31 
                                             2002           2001             2001 
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------- 
                                                 (U naudited)               (Audited) 
Operating Activities 
Net income                            $    17,360      $  16,684        $      60,776 
Adjustments to reconcile net 
 income to net cash provided by 
 operating activities: 
    Depreciation and amortization           9,015          9,019               36,542 
    Provision for uncollectible 
     accounts                               1,784          1,458                5,774 
    Employee benefit obligations             (900)           816               (2,045)  
    Changes in current assets 
     and current liabilities: 
        Accounts receivable                   971         (3,975)             (11,579)  
        Other current assets                1,464            299               (1,442)  
        Current liabilities                (4,144)        (6,888)               4,921 
    Other, net                               (113)         2,482                 (992)  
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------- 
 
Net cash provided by operating 
 activities                                25,437         19,895               91,955 
 
Investing Activities 
Capital expenditures                      (11,237)       (11,843)             (56,735)  
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------- 
 
Cash used in investing activities         (11,237)       (11,843)             (56,735)  
 
Financing Activities 
Net transfers to GTE Corporation          (14,200)        (8,052)             (35,220)  
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------- 
 
Cash used in financing activities         (14,200)        (8,052)             (35,220)  
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------- 
 
Net change in cash during the period            -              -                    - 
Cash at beginning of period                     -              -                    - 
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------- 
 
Cash at end of period                 $         -      $       -        $           - 
=================================================== ================================== 



Verizon's Alabama Operations  

Notes to Financial Statements  

1. Description of Business  

The selected local telephone exchanges (the Exchanges) included in these special-purpose financial statements serve approximately 304,000 
switched access lines in the state of Alabama. The Exchanges represent approximately 8% and 65%, respectively, of the switched access lines 
in service for Verizon South Inc. and Contel of the South, Inc. (together, the Companies) and, on a combined basis, 13% of the Companies' 
total access lines. The Companies are wholly owned subsidiaries of GTE Corporation (GTE), which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Verizon 
Communications Inc. (Verizon).  

The Companies provide two basic types of telecommunications services:  

Exchange telecommunication service is the transmission of telecommunications among customers located within a local calling area within a 
LATA. Examples of exchange telecommunications services include switched local residential and business services, local private line voice 
and data services and Centrex services. The Companies also provide toll services within a LATA (intraLATA long distance).  

Exchange access service links a customer's premises and the transmission facilities of other telecommunications carriers, generally interLATA 
carriers. Examples of exchange access services include switched access and special access services.  

The communications services provided by the Companies are subject to regulation by the state regulatory commission of Alabama with respect 
to intrastate rates and services and certain other matters. The Federal Communications Commission (FCC) regulates rates that the Companies 
charge long-distance carriers and end-user subscribers for interstate access rates.  

On October 22, 2001, the Companies entered into an asset purchase agreement with CenturyTel of Alabama L.L.C., a wholly owned subsidiary 
of CenturyTel, Inc. (CenturyTel), to sell all in-franchise switched access lines in the state of Alabama to CenturyTel. The transaction closed on 
July 1, 2002.  

2. Basis of Presentation  

Historically, financial statements have not been prepared for the Exchanges, as they have no separate legal status or existence. The 
accompanying special-purpose financial statements have been prepared to present the statement of selected assets, selected liabilities and parent 
funding and statements of income and cash flows of the Exchanges for inclusion in CenturyTel's Form 8-K for purposes of complying with the 
rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission as required by Rule 3-05 of Regulation S-X for the transaction between 
CenturyTel and the Companies. The accompanying special-purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States using exchange-specific information where available (most revenue and property, plant and 
equipment (PP&E) related accounts) and allocations where data is not maintained on an exchange-specific basis within the Companies' books 
and records (most operating expenses, assets other than PP&E, and liabilities). Because of the significant amount of allocations and estimates 
used to prepare these financial statements, they may not reflect the financial position or results of operations of the Exchanges after the sale to 
CenturyTel.  

The unaudited interim financial information presented herein has been prepared according to accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States. In management's opinion, the information presented herein reflects all adjustments (consisting only of normal recurring accruals) 
necessary to present fairly the interim selected assets, selected liabilities and parent funding, and results of operations and cash flows of 
Verizon's Alabama Operations. The results for the interim periods are not necessarily indicative of the results for the full year.  

The accompanying special-purpose financial statements include only those assets, liabilities and related operations of the Exchanges as 
historically incurred by the Companies and exclude all other assets, liabilities and operations of the Companies, specifically, affiliate accounts, 
cash, debt, accrued interest, and tax-related balance sheet accounts. These special-purpose financial statements also include the assets, liabilities 
and expenses related to employees who support the Exchanges, some of which are expected to remain employees of the Companies following 
the sale of the Exchanges.  

Receivables related to end-user billings and operating revenues were identified by exchange using applicable billing system data. Receivables 
related to carrier and other miscellaneous billings were allocated to the Exchanges in proportion to carrier revenues.  

Accounts payable were allocated to the Exchanges based on operating expenses and capital expenditures. Customer advances and deposits 
were allocated to the Exchanges based on total revenue. Accrued payroll costs were allocated to the Exchanges based on employee head count. 
Other current liabilities and other liabilities were allocated to the Exchanges based on access line count.  

The Exchanges' operating expenses include both amounts incurred within their operating territories that relate directly to their exchanges (the 
Direct Expenses) and amounts incurred in centralized Verizon service centers that support multiple Verizon companies (the Indirect Expenses). 
The Direct Expenses generally correspond with locally performed functions, which are likely to transfer to the buyer of the Exchanges. The 



Indirect Expenses correspond to substantial back-office support and overhead functions, which are not likely to transfer to the buyer, but that 
the buyer will need to replace in some form in order to operate the Exchanges. The Indirect Expenses have been allocated to the Companies 
and further to specific exchanges within the Companies (including the Exchanges) based on estimates of usage or benefits received from such 
services. The level of allocated Indirect Expenses may not be representative of the buyer's ongoing expenses for these functions. Depreciation 
and amortization were calculated by using the related property, plant and equipment data.  

Management believes the allocations used to determine selected amounts in the financial statements are appropriate methods to reasonably 
reflect the related income or expense of the Exchanges.  

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Disclosures  

The notes to the financial statements that follow contain limited disclosure data where it can be reasonably estimated for the Exchanges.  

Revenue Recognition  

Service revenues are recognized based on usage of local exchange networks and facilities and contract fees. The Exchanges recognize product 
and other service revenues when services are provided in accordance with contract terms and when products are delivered and accepted by the 
customers.  

The Companies adopted the provisions of the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) Staff Accounting Bulletin (SAB) No. 101, Revenue 
Recognition in Financial Statements, effective January 1, 2000, as required by the SEC. As a result of the adoption of SAB No. 101, the 
Companies defer nonrecurring service activation revenues and costs and amortize them over the expected term of the customer relationship. 
The deferred costs are equal to the activation fee revenue and any excess cost is expensed immediately. The deferred costs represent direct 
costs associated with certain nonrecurring fees, such as service activation and installation fees.  

Maintenance and Repairs  

The cost of maintenance and repairs, including the cost of replacing minor items not constituting substantial betterments, is charged to cost of 
services as these costs are incurred.  

Materials and Supplies  

Included in materials and supplies are new and reusable materials, which are stated principally at average original cost, except that specific 
costs are used in the case of large individual items.  

Long-Lived Assets  

The Companies assess the impairment of long-lived assets under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 121, Accounting 
for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of, whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate 
that the carrying value may not be recoverable. A determination of impairment, if any, is made based on estimates of future cash flows. (See 
Recent Accounting Pronouncements - Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets below.)  

Plant and Depreciation  

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost. Depreciation expense is principally based on the composite group remaining life method 
and straight-line composite rates. This method provides for the recognition of the cost of the remaining net investment in telephone plant, less 
anticipated net salvage value, over remaining economic asset lives. This method requires the periodic review and revision of depreciation rates. 
The asset lives used are as follows:  

 

When depreciable telephone plant is replaced or retired in the normal course of business, the carrying amount of such plant is deducted from 
the respective accounts and accumulated depreciation is charged.  

Interest associated with the acquisition or construction of plant assets is capitalized. Capitalized interest is reported as a cost of plant and a 
reduction in interest expense. The Companies capitalized $1,756,000 of interest costs for the year ended December 31, 2001.  

                                                        Average Lives  
                                                         (In Years) 
 
Buildings                                                    30-35 
Central office equipment                                      5-10 
Outside communications plant                                 15-50 
Furniture, vehicles and other equipment                       3-15 



Computer Software Costs  

The Companies capitalize the cost of internal-use software which has a useful life in excess of one year in accordance with Statement of 
Position (SOP) No. 98-1, Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use. Subsequent additions, 
modifications or upgrades to internal-use software are capitalized only to the extent that they allow the software to perform a task it previously 
did not perform. Software maintenance and training costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Also, interest associated with 
the development of internal-use software is capitalized. Capitalized computer software costs are amortized using the straight-line method over a 
period of three to seven years.  

Income Taxes  

Verizon and its domestic subsidiaries, including the Companies, file a consolidated federal income tax return. The Companies participate in a 
tax-sharing agreement with Verizon and remit tax payments to Verizon based on their respective tax liability on a separate company basis.  

The Exchanges are not taxable entities. The Exchanges' operating results are included within the Companies for income tax purposes. Although 
the Exchanges contribute significant plant-related temporary differences (including investment tax credits) to the Companies' deferred tax 
balances, the Companies do not allocate income tax expense, income tax payables or deferred income taxes to the Exchanges. Deferred tax 
assets or liabilities are included in parent funding within these special-purpose financial statements. The provision for income taxes included in 
the accompanying statement of income for the year ended December 31, 2001 was calculated based on the income before income taxes of the 
Exchanges and the Companies' effective tax rates adjusted for permanent differences not attributable to the Exchanges. The primary difference 
between the effective income tax rate and the statutory federal income tax rate is state income taxes, net of federal tax benefits.  

Advertising Costs  

The Companies expense advertising costs as they are incurred. The Companies incurred $6.6 million in advertising costs in 2001. Based on the 
number of access lines, the allocated advertising costs for the Exchanges were approximately $0.9 million for 2001.  

Employee Benefit Plans  

The Companies participate in the Verizon benefit plans. Under these plans, pension and postretirement healthcare and life insurance benefits 
earned during the year, as well as interest on projected benefit obligations, are accrued currently. Prior service costs and credits resulting from 
changes in plan benefits are amortized over the average remaining service period of the employees expected to receive the benefits.  

Comprehensive Income  

The Companies had no other comprehensive income components for the year ended December 31, 2001 or for the quarters ended March 31, 
2002 and 2001; therefore, the Companies' and the Exchanges' comprehensive income is the same as net income.  

Derivative Instruments  

Effective January 1, 2001, the Companies adopted SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, and SFAS 
No. 138, Accounting for Certain Derivative Instruments and Certain Hedging Activities. SFAS No. 133 requires that all derivatives, including 
derivatives embedded in other financial instruments, be measured at fair value and recognized as either assets or liabilities on the Companies' 
balance sheets. Changes in the fair values of derivatives not qualifying as hedges under SFAS No. 133 and any ineffective portion of hedges 
are recognized in earnings in the current period. Changes in the fair values of derivative instruments used effectively as fair value hedges are 
recognized in earnings, along with changes in the fair value of the hedged item. Changes in the fair value of the effective portions of cash flow 
hedges are reported in other comprehensive income, and recognized in earnings when the hedged item is recognized in earnings. The 
Companies had no derivative instruments as of December 31, 2001 or March 31, 2002 and 2001.  

Recent Accounting Pronouncements  

Business Combinations  

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued SFAS No. 141, Business Combinations, which applies to business 
combinations occurring after June 30, 2001. SFAS No. 141 requires that the purchase method of accounting be used and includes guidance on 
the initial recognition and measurement of goodwill and other intangible assets acquired in the combination.  

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets  

Effective January 1, 2002, the Companies adopted SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. SFAS No. 142 no longer permits the 
amortization of goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets. Instead, these assets must be reviewed annually (or more frequently under 
certain conditions) for impairment in accordance with this statement. This impairment test uses a fair value approach rather than the 
undiscounted cash flows approach previously required by SFAS No. 121. The goodwill impairment test under SFAS No. 142 requires a two-



step approach, which is performed at the reporting unit level, as defined in SFAS No. 142. Step one identifies potential impairments by 
comparing the fair value of the reporting unit to its carrying amount. Step two, which is only performed if there is a potential impairment, 
compares the carrying amount of the reporting unit's goodwill to its implied value, as defined in SFAS No. 142. If the carrying amount of the 
reporting unit's goodwill exceeds the implied fair value of that goodwill, an impairment loss is recognized for an amount equal to that excess. 
Intangible assets that do not have indefinite lives will continue to be amortized over their useful lives and reviewed for impairment in 
accordance with SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets. The adoption of SFAS No. 142 did not 
impact the results of operations or statement of selected assets, selected liabilities and parent funding because the Companies had no goodwill 
or other intangible assets as of January 1, 2002.  

Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets  

Effective January 1, 2002, the Companies adopted SFAS No. 144. This standard supersedes SFAS No. 121 and the provisions of APB Opinion 
No. 30, Reporting the Results of Operations-Reporting the Effects of Disposal of a Segment of a Business, and Extraordinary, Unusual and 
Infrequently Occurring Events and Transactions, with regard to reporting the effects of a disposal of a segment of a business. SFAS No. 144 
establishes a single accounting model for assets to be disposed of by sale and addresses several SFAS No. 121 implementation issues. The 
adoption of SFAS No. 144 did not have a material effect on the results of operations or financial position.  

Asset Retirement Obligations  

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143, Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations. This standard provides the accounting for the 
cost of legal obligations associated with the retirement of long-lived assets. SFAS No. 143 requires that companies recognize the fair value of a 
liability for asset retirement obligations in the period in which the obligations are incurred and capitalize that amount as a part of the book value 
of the long-lived asset. That cost is then depreciated over the remaining life of the underlying long-lived asset. The Companies are required to 
adopt SFAS No. 143, effective January 1, 2003. The Companies are currently evaluating the impact this new standard will have on their future 
results of operations or financial position.  

4. Property, Plant and Equipment  

The Companies maintain continuing property records, which identify specific property, plant and equipment (PP&E) balances, depreciation 
reserves and annual capital expenditure amounts for the Exchanges. The PP&E balance in the accompanying statement is based on these 
exchange-specific amounts and does not include any allocations of common assets utilized in providing the centralized services described in 
Note 2.  

PP&E of the Exchanges is summarized as follows at December 31, 2001 (dollars in thousands):  

 

5. Employee Benefit Plans  

The Companies participate in Verizon's benefit plans. Verizon maintains noncontributory defined benefit pension plans for substantially all 
employees. The postretirement healthcare and life insurance plans for the Companies' retirees and their dependents are both contributory and 
noncontributory and include a limit on the Companies' share of cost for recent and future retirees. The Companies also sponsor defined 
contribution savings plans to provide opportunities for eligible employees to save for retirement on a tax-deferred basis.  

The structure of Verizon's benefit plans does not provide for the separate determination of certain disclosures for the Companies or the 
Exchanges.  

Pension Plans  

The Companies participate in noncontributory defined benefit pension plans sponsored by Verizon covering substantially all employees. The 
benefits to be paid under these plans are generally based on years of credited service and average final earnings. Verizon's funding policy, 
subject to the minimum funding requirements of employee benefit and tax laws, is to contribute such amounts as are determined on an actuarial 

--------------------------------------------------- -------------------  
 
 Land                                                 $         1,489 
 Buildings                                                     38,690 
 Central office equipment                                     257,317 
 Outside communications plant                                 436,675 
 Furniture, vehicles and other work equipment                  12,131 
 Other                                                         12,183 
 Construction-in-progress                                         908 
--------------------------------------------------- -------------------  
                                                              759,393 
 Less accumulated depreciation                               (516,158)  
--------------------------------------------------- -------------------  
 Property, plant and equipment, net                   $       243,235 
=================================================== ===================  



basis to accumulate funds sufficient to meet the plans' benefit obligation to employees upon their retirement. The Verizon plans are currently 
funded at levels in excess of projected benefit obligations. The assets of the plans consist primarily of corporate equities, government securities 
and corporate debt securities.  

The Exchanges' net periodic benefit credit was $3.8 million for 2001. The net periodic benefit credit for the Exchanges was based on an 
allocation of the Companies' net periodic benefit credit. The allocations were based on the relative number of active employees of the 
Exchanges and retired employees of the Companies who were previously involved in the operations of the Exchanges to the Companies' total 
active and retired employee participants of the plans.  

The prepaid pension asset shown on the accompanying financial statements represents an allocation of the Companies' net prepaid pension 
cost. The allocation was based on the relative number of active employees of the Exchanges and retired employees of the Companies who were 
previously directly involved in the operations of the Exchanges to the Companies' total active and retired employee participants of the plans.  

The significant weighted-average assumptions used by Verizon for the pension measurements were as follows at December 31, 2001:  

 

Postretirement Benefits Other than Pensions  

Substantially all of the Companies' employees are covered under postretirement healthcare and life insurance benefit plans sponsored by 
Verizon. The determination of benefit cost for postretirement health plans is generally based on comprehensive hospital, medical and surgical 
benefit plan provisions. The Companies intend to fund amounts for postretirement benefits as deemed appropriate.  

The Exchanges' postretirement benefit cost was $2.2 million for 2001. The postretirement cost for the Exchanges was based on an allocation of 
the Companies' net postretirement benefit cost. The allocation was based on the relative number of active employees of the Exchanges and 
retired employees of the Companies who were previously involved in the operations of the Exchanges to the Companies' total active and retired 
employee participants of the plans.  

The employee benefit obligations shown in the accompanying financial statements represent an allocation of the Companies' actuarially 
determined postretirement healthcare and life insurance benefit liabilities. The allocation was based on the relative number of active employees 
of the Exchanges and retired employees of the Companies who were previously involved in the operations of the Exchanges to the Companies' 
total active and retired employee participants of the plans.  

The weighted-average assumptions used by Verizon in the actuarial computations for healthcare and life benefits were as follows at December 
31, 2001:  

 

Savings Plans and Employee Stock Ownership Plans  

Substantially all of the Companies' employees are eligible to participate in savings plans maintained by Verizon. Verizon maintains a leveraged 
employee stock ownership plan (ESOP) for its management employees of the former GTE subsidiaries. Under this plan, a certain percentage of 
eligible employee contributions is matched with shares of Verizon's common stock. Verizon recognizes leveraged ESOP cost based on the 
modified shares allocated method for this leveraged ESOP that held shares before December 31, 1989. The Companies recognize savings plans 
costs based on their matching obligation attributed to their participating management employees. In addition to the ESOP, Verizon also 
maintains a savings plan for nonmanagement employees. Matching contributions attributable to the Exchanges' employees were included as 
general and administrative expenses in these special-purpose financial statements. The Exchanges' total savings plans costs, based on an 
allocation of the Exchanges' employees to the Companies' total employees, were approximately $726,000 in 2001.  

6. Parent Funding and Interest Expense  

For purposes of these statements, all funding requirements have been summarized as "parent funding" without regard to whether the funding 
represents debt or equity. No specific debt instruments can be directly associated with the Exchanges, nor are separate equity accounts 
maintained. As such, interest expense, net of interest income, of the Companies for the year ended December 31, 2001 and the quarters ended 
March 31, 2002 and 2001 was allocated to the Exchanges and shown in the accompanying statements of income based on the relative 
percentage of the Exchanges' parent funding to the total debt and equity for the Companies.  

7. Transactions with Affiliates  

Discount rate                                                7.25%  
Rate of compensation increase                                5.00 
Long-term rate of return on plan assets                      9.25 

Discount rate                                                7.25%  
Long-term rate of return on plan assets                      8.00 
Medical cost trend rate at end of year                      10.00 
Ultimate (year 2005)                                         5.00 



Historically, extensive transactions have occurred between the Exchanges and GTE Communications Systems Corporation (GTE 
Communications Systems), Verizon Information Services Inc., Verizon Data Services Inc., Verizon Services (including Verizon Services 
Corp., Verizon Services Group, and Verizon Corporate Services Group Inc.), GTE Funding and various other affiliates. These transactions 
have included construction and maintenance services, data processing and management services, and financing and directories agreements.  

The Companies' transactions with affiliates are summarized as follows (the respective information is not separately available for the 
Exchanges):  

 

GTE Communications Systems (100% owned by Verizon) provides construction and maintenance equipment, supplies and electronic repair 
services to the Companies. Such purchases and services are recorded at the lower of cost, including a return realized by GTE Communications 
Systems, or fair market value.  

The Companies have an agreement to provide subscriber lists, billing and collection and other services to Verizon Information Services Inc. 
(Directories) (100% owned by Verizon). Directories bills the Exchanges for printing and other costs associated with regulatory requirements 
included in the telephone directories, including the cost of any Extended Area Service sections in the directories. Directories also bills the 
Exchanges for any advertising it places in the telephone directories. The amounts charged to the Companies for these transactions are based on 
fair market value.  

Verizon Data Services Inc. provides data processing services, software application development and maintenance, which generally benefit 
Verizon's operating telephone subsidiaries, including the Companies. The amounts charged to the Companies for these affiliated transactions 
are based on proportional cost allocation methodologies.  

The Companies have contractual arrangements with Verizon Services Inc. for the provision of various centralized services. These services are 
divided into two broad categories. The first category is comprised of network-related services, which generally benefit only Verizon's operating 
telephone subsidiaries. These services include marketing, sales, legal, accounting, finance, data processing, materials management, 
procurement, labor relations, and staff support for various network operations. The second category is comprised of overhead and support 
services, which generally benefit all subsidiaries of Verizon. Such services include corporate governance, corporate finance, external affairs, 
legal, media relations, employee communications, corporate advertising, human resources, and treasury. Cost may be directly assigned to one 
subsidiary or allocated to more than one subsidiary based on functional reviews of the work performed.  

The Companies recognized interest expense/income in connection with contractual arrangements with GTE Funding to provide short-term 
financing and cash management services to them.  

In 2000, Verizon South Inc. transferred certain advanced data assets to an affiliated company, Verizon Ventures III Inc. (Ventures III), in 
exchange for common stock of Ventures III. This transfer was done to satisfy a condition of the FCC's approval of the Bell Atlantic-GTE 
merger, which required the provision of advanced data services through a separate affiliate. Throughout 2001, Verizon South Inc. continued to 
invest in Ventures III through the transfer of additional assets. As a result of the transfers, Verizon South Inc. has an ownership interest in 
Ventures III, which is accounted for under the equity method of accounting. Verizon South Inc.'s ownership interest in Ventures III was 1.11% 
at December 31, 2001.  

                                                                      Year ended 
                                                                   December 31, 2001 
--------------------------------------------------- -------------------------------------- 
                                                            Contel of the        Verizon 
                                                                South              South 
--------------------------------------------------- -------------------------------------- 
                                                               (Dollars in Thousands) 
Operating revenues: 
  Verizon Information Services Inc.                          $       10       $     1,100 
  Other revenue from affiliates                                  21,284            66,400 
--------------------------------------------------- -------------------------------------- 
                                                                 21,294            67,500 
Operating expenses: 
  GTE Communications Systems                                     11,186            15,100 
  Verizon Information Services Inc.                                 143             4,200 
  Verizon Data Services Inc.                                      4,538            61,200 
  Verizon Services                                                9,501           122,100 
  Other                                                               -               200 
--------------------------------------------------- -------------------------------------- 
                                                                 25,368           202,800 
Other income: 
   Equity loss from Ventures III                                      -            (9,300)  
 
Interest expense (income), net: 
   Interest expense (income) to GTE, net                          3,178              (300)  
 
Plant, property and equipment: 
   Purchases from GTE Communications Systems                         55            44,700 
   Transfer of advanced data assets from Ventures I II                 -             4,000 
--------------------------------------------------- -------------------------------------- 
                                                                     55            48,700 



The accompanying financial statements reflect equity losses associated with the investment in Ventures III of $837,000 in 2001 and an 
investment in Ventures III, included in other assets, of $20,000 at December 31, 2001.  

Other operating revenues and expenses include miscellaneous items of income and expense resulting from transactions with other affiliates of 
the Companies. These transactions include the provision of local and network access services, billing and collection services, rental of facilities 
and equipment, and sales and purchases of materials and supplies. The Companies also earn fees from an affiliate for usage of its directory 
listings.  

The affiliated receivables and payables associated with these transactions have been included in parent funding.  

8. Regulatory Matters  

The state regulatory commission in Alabama regulates the Companies' intrastate business. The Companies are also subject to regulation by the 
Federal Communications Commission for their interstate business operations. The Companies' Alabama price cap plan started in January 1996. 
The plan does not have an expiration date but is reviewed every five years. There are three service categories: basic, nonbasic and 
interconnection. Basic services are capped for five years from the September 1995 order date. At the end of the cap, prices can be increased by 
GDP-PI less a 1% productivity factor less any service penalties (up to 0.75% maximum penalty). Nonbasic services can be increased beginning 
January 1997 and prices can be increased a maximum of 10% in the aggregate for a given year. Individual prices can be changed more than 
10% as long as the aggregate change is 10% or less. The Companies' intrastate access charges are capped at a composite rate of $0.064 per 
minute. Tariff filings for incumbent local exchange carriers are presumptively valid. Earnings are not regulated.  

9. Commitments and Contingencies  

The Companies have noncancelable operating leases covering certain buildings, office space and equipment. The Companies' rental expense 
was $33,523,000 in 2001. Minimum rental commitments under these noncancelable leases are approximately $4.3 million, $3.9 million, $3.7 
million, $3.4 million, and $3.0 million for the years 2002 through 2006, respectively, and $9.6 million thereafter. Based on the number of 
access lines, the allocated rent expense of the Exchanges was approximately $4.4 million for 2001.  

Various legal actions and regulatory proceedings are pending to which the Companies are a party and there are claims which, if asserted, may 
lead to other legal actions. Management does not believe the ultimate resolution of pending regulatory and legal matters in future periods will 
have a material effect on the financial position of the Companies or the Exchanges.  

10. Segment Reporting  

The Exchanges do not have separate reportable segments of their own. The Exchanges are part of the Companies, which have one reportable 
segment - the provision of domestic wire line telecommunications services. Specifically, the Companies provide local telephone services 
including voice and data transport, enhanced and custom calling features, network access, directory assistance and private lines. In addition, the 
Companies provide customer premises equipment distribution, billing and collection, and pay telephone services.  

11. Financial Instruments  

Financial instruments that subject the Companies to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of short-term investments and trade 
receivables. Concentrations of credit risk with respect to trade receivables other than those from AT&T Corp. (AT&T) are limited due to the 
large number of customers. The Companies' revenues generated from services provided to AT&T (primarily network access and billing and 
collection) were 6.9% of total revenues for 2001.  

While the Companies may be exposed to credit losses due to the nonperformance of their counterparties, the Companies consider this risk 
remote and do not expect the settlement of these transactions to have a material effect on their results of operations or financial position.  

* * * * * * * *  
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Report of Independent Auditors  

The Board of Directors and Shareowner  
GTE Midwest Incorporated  

We have audited the accompanying special-purpose statement of selected assets, selected liabilities and parent funding of Verizon's Missouri 
Operations (the Exchanges), a carved-out component of GTE Midwest Incorporated (the Company), as of December 31, 2001, and the related 
statements of income, parent funding and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's 
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.  

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those standards require that we plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit 
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes 
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.  

As described in Note 2, the accompanying special-purpose financial statements were prepared for inclusion in CenturyTel, Inc.'s (CenturyTel) 
Form 8-K for purposes of complying with the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission as required by Rule 3-05 of 
Regulation S-X in connection with an asset purchase agreement between CenturyTel of Missouri L.L.C., a wholly owned subsidiary of 
CenturyTel and the Company. The statements include allocations of certain indirectly attributable amounts on bases determined by 
management of the Company.  

In our opinion, the special-purpose financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the selected assets, selected 
liabilities and parent funding of Verizon's Missouri Operations as of December 31, 2001, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for 
the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.  
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/s/ Ernst & Young LLP 
April 24, 2002 

                                                    March 31, 2002     December 31, 2001  
--------------------------------------------------- -------------------------------------  
                                                     (Unaudited)          (Audited) 
Selected Assets 
Current assets: 
   Accounts receivable, net of allowance of 
     $4,888 and $4,710, respectively                  $   47,481         $     48,267 
   Materials and supplies                                    705                  577 
   Prepaid expenses                                        4,677                6,500 
   Deferred activation charges - current                   3,752                3,820 
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------- 
Total current assets                                      56,615               59,164 
 
Property, plant and equipment, net                       392,610              390,409 
 
Prepaid pension asset                                     83,353               80,794 
Deferred activation charges - noncurrent                   7,003                7,238 
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------- 
Total selected assets                                 $  539,581          $   537,605 
=================================================== ================================== 
 
Selected Liabilities and Parent Funding 
Current liabilities: 
   Accounts payable                                   $        -          $       895 
   Advance billings and customer deposits                  5,699                5,323 
   Accrued payroll-related costs                           9,593               15,306 
   Deferred activation revenues - current                  3,752                3,820 
   Other current liabilities                               9,519                9,276 



 

See accompanying notes.  

Verizon's Missouri Operations Statements of Income  

 
(Dollars in Thousands)  

 

See accompanying notes.  

Verizon's Missouri Operations Statements of Parent Funding  

 
(Dollars in Thousands)  

 

 

See accompanying notes.  

--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------- 
Total current liabilities                                 28,563               34,620 
 
Employee benefit obligations                              28,221               28,201 
Deferred activation revenues - noncurrent                  7,003                7,238 
Other liabilities                                            575                  849 
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------- 
Total selected liabilities                                64,362               70,908 
Parent funding                                           475,219              466,697 
--------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------- 
Total selected liabilities and parent funding         $  539,581          $   537,605 
=================================================== ================================== 

                                                                           Year ended  
                                          Three Mon ths ended March 31     December 31  
                                             2002           2001              2001 
--------------------------------------------------- ----------------------------------  
                                                 (U naudited)               (Audited) 
Operating Revenues 
Local services                          $  27,818     $   26,052          $   106,072  
Network access services                    33,479         41,113              149,463  
Long-distance services                      3,934          4,466               17,926  
Other services                              5,442          6,486               22,425  
--------------------------------------------------- ----------------------------------  
Total operating revenues                   70,673         78,117              295,886  
 
Operating Expenses 
Cost of services                           17,447         14,622               85,609  
Selling, general and administrative         9,096         10,949               38,809  
Depreciation and amortization              12,115         11,318               44,956  
--------------------------------------------------- ----------------------------------  
Total operating expenses                   38,658         36,889              169,374  
--------------------------------------------------- ----------------------------------  
 
Operating income                           32,015         41,228              126,512  
Interest expense, net                       1,829          3,522               11,884  
Other (income) expense                         (9)           (49)               1,645  
--------------------------------------------------- ----------------------------------  
Income before income taxes                 30,195         37,755              112,983  
Income taxes                               11,688         14,541               47,420  
--------------------------------------------------- ----------------------------------  
Net income                              $  18,507     $   23,214          $    65,563  
=================================================== ==================================  

                            For the Three Months en ded March 31, 2002 
                              and the Year ended De cember 31, 2001 
--------------------------------------------------- -----------------------------  
 
Balance at December 31, 2000                                      $     440,818 
   Net income (audited)                                                  65,563 
   Net transfers to GTE Corporation (audited)                           (39,684)  
--------------------------------------------------- -----------------------------  
Balance at December 31, 2001 (audited)                                  466,697 
   Net income (unaudited)                                                18,507 
   Net transfers to GTE Corporation (unaudited)                          (9,985)  
--------------------------------------------------- -----------------------------  
Balance at March 31, 2002 (unaudited)                             $     475,219 
=================================================== =============================  



Verizon's Missouri Operations  

Statements of Cash Flows  
(Dollars in Thousands)  

 

 

See accompanying notes.  

                                                                             Year ended 
                                            Three M onths ended March 31     December 31 
                                                 20 02          2001             2001 
--------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------ 
                                                    (Unaudited)              (Audited) 
Operating Activities 
Net income                                   $ 18,5 07     $  23,214        $     65,563 
Adjustments to reconcile net income 
  to net cash provided by operating 
  activities: 
     Depreciation and amortization             12,1 15        11,318              44,956 
     Provision for uncollectible accounts       1,1 94         1,407               1,627 
     Employee benefit obligations              (2,5 39)       (1,847)             (7,440)  
     Changes in current assets and current 
       liabilities: 
         Accounts receivable                     (4 08)       (2,991)             (6,633)  
         Other current assets                   1,6 95         9,948               5,815 
         Current liabilities                   (6,2 32)      (10,001)             (7,277)  
       Other, net                                 ( 31)       (6,381)             (3,464)  
--------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------ 
Cash provided by operating activities          24,3 01        24,667              93,147 
 
Investing Activities 
Capital expenditures                          (14,3 16)       (9,474)            (53,463)  
--------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------ 
Cash used in investing activities             (14,3 16)       (9,474)            (53,463)  
 
Financing Activities 
Net transfers to GTE Corporation               (9,9 85)      (15,193)            (39,684)  
--------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------ 
Cash used in financing activities              (9,9 85)      (15,193)            (39,684)  
--------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------ 
 
Net change in cash during the period                -             -                   - 
Cash at beginning of period                         -             -                   - 
--------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------ 
 
Cash at end of period                        $      -     $       -        $          - 
=================================================== ==================================== 



Verizon's Missouri Operations Notes to Financial Statements  

1. Description of Business  

The selected local telephone exchanges (the Exchanges) included in these special-purpose financial statements serve approximately 371,000 
switched access lines in the state of Missouri. The exchanges represent substantially all of the switched access lines in service for GTE 
Midwest Incorporated (Company or GTE Midwest). The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of GTE Corporation (GTE), which is a 
wholly owned subsidiary of Verizon Communications Inc. (Verizon).  

The Company provides two basic types of telecommunications services:  

Exchange telecommunication service is the transmission of telecommunications among customers located within a local calling area within a 
LATA. Examples of exchange telecommunications services include switched local residential and business services, local private line voice 
and data services, and Centrex services. The Company also provides toll services within a LATA (intraLATA long distance).  

Exchange access service links a customer's premises and the transmission facilities of other telecommunications carriers, generally interLATA 
carriers. Examples of exchange access services include switched access and special access services.  

The communications services provided by the Company are subject to regulation by the Missouri Public Service Commission with respect to 
intrastate rates and services and certain other matters. The Federal Communications Commission (FCC) regulates rates that the Company 
charges long-distance carriers and end-user subscribers for interstate access rates.  

On October 22, 2001, the Company entered into an asset purchase agreement with CenturyTel of Missouri L.L.C., a wholly owned subsidiary 
of CenturyTel, Inc. (CenturyTel), to sell all in-franchise switched access lines in the state of Missouri to CenturyTel. The transaction is 
expected to close in the third quarter of 2002.  

2. Basis of Presentation  

Historically, financial statements have not been prepared for the Exchanges, as they have no separate legal status or existence. The 
accompanying special-purpose financial statements have been prepared to present the statement of selected assets, selected liabilities and parent 
funding and statements of income and cash flows of the Exchanges for inclusion in CenturyTel's Form 8-K for purposes of complying with the 
rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission as required by Rule 3-05 of Regulation S-X for the transaction between 
CenturyTel and the Company. The accompanying special-purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States using exchange-specific information where available (most revenue and property, plant and 
equipment (PP&E) related accounts) and allocations where data is not maintained on an exchange-specific basis within the Company's books 
and records (most operating expenses, assets other than PP&E, and liabilities). Because of the significant amount of allocations and estimates 
used to prepare these financial statements, they may not reflect the financial position or results of operations of the Exchanges after the sale to 
CenturyTel.  

The unaudited interim financial information presented herein has been prepared according to accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States. In management's opinion, the information presented herein reflects all adjustments (consisting only of normal recurring accruals) 
necessary to present fairly the interim selected assets, selected liabilities and parent funding, and results of operations and cash flows of 
Verizon's Missouri Operations. The results for the interim periods are not necessarily indicative of the results for the full year.  

The accompanying special-purpose financial statements include only those assets, liabilities and related operations of the Exchanges as 
historically incurred by the Company and exclude all other assets, liabilities and operations of GTE Midwest and Verizon and its other 
subsidiaries, specifically cash, debt, accrued interest, and tax-related balance sheet accounts. These special-purpose financial statements also 
include assets, liabilities and expenses related to employees who support the Exchanges, some of whom are expected to remain employees of 
the Company following the sale of the Exchanges.  

Accounts receivable and operating revenues are based on the applicable billing system information. Other current assets and the current 
liabilities of the Exchanges reflect the respective balances of the Company, excluding amounts owed from/to affiliates.  

The Exchanges' operating expenses include both amounts incurred within their operating territories that relate directly to their exchanges (the 
Direct Expenses) and amounts incurred in centralized Verizon service centers that support multiple Verizon companies (the Indirect Expenses). 
The Direct Expenses generally correspond with locally performed functions, which are likely to transfer to the buyer of the Exchanges. The 
Indirect Expenses correspond to substantial back-office support and overhead functions, which are not likely to transfer to the buyer, but that 
the buyer will need to replace in some form in order to operate the Exchanges. The Indirect Expenses have been allocated to GTE Midwest and 
further to specific exchanges within GTE Midwest (including the Exchanges) based on estimates of usage or benefits received from such 
services. The level of allocated Indirect Expenses may not be representative of the buyer's ongoing expenses for these functions. Depreciation 
and amortization were calculated using the related property, plant and equipment data.  

Management believes the allocations used to determine selected amounts in the financial statements are appropriate methods to reasonably 
reflect the related income or expense of the Exchanges.  



3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Disclosures  

The notes to the financial statements that follow contain limited disclosure data where it can be reasonably estimated for the Exchanges.  

Revenue Recognition  

Service revenues are recognized based on usage of local exchange networks and facilities and contract fees. The Exchanges recognize product 
and other service revenues when services are provided in accordance with contract terms and when products are delivered and accepted by the 
customers.  

The Company adopted the provisions of the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) Staff Accounting Bulletin (SAB) No. 101, Revenue 
Recognition in Financial Statements, effective January 1, 2000, as required by the SEC. As a result of the adoption of SAB No. 101, the 
Company defers nonrecurring service activation revenues and costs and amortize them over the expected term of the customer relationship. The 
deferred costs are equal to the activation fee revenue and any excess cost is expensed immediately. The deferred costs represent direct costs 
associated with certain nonrecurring fees, such as service activation and installation fees.  

Maintenance and Repairs  

The cost of maintenance and repairs, including the cost of replacing minor items not constituting substantial betterments, is charged to cost of 
services as these costs are incurred.  

Materials and Supplies  

Included in materials and supplies are new and reusable materials, which are stated principally at average original cost, except that specific 
costs are used in the case of large individual items.  

Long-Lived Assets  

The Company assesses the impairment of long-lived assets under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 121, Accounting 
for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of, whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate 
that the carrying value may not be recoverable. A determination of impairment, if any, is made based on estimates of future cash flows. (See 
Recent Accounting Pronouncements - Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets below.)  

Plant and Depreciation  

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost. Depreciation expense is principally based on the composite group remaining life method 
and straight-line composite rates. This method provides for the recognition of the cost of the remaining net investment in telephone plant, less 
anticipated net salvage value, over remaining economic asset lives. This method requires the periodic review and revision of depreciation rates. 
The asset lives used are as follows:  

 

When depreciable telephone plant is replaced or retired in the normal course of business, the carrying amount of such plant is deducted from 
the respective accounts and accumulated depreciation is charged.  

Interest associated with the acquisition or construction of plant assets is capitalized. Capitalized interest is reported as a cost of plant and a 
reduction in interest expense. During 2001, the Company capitalized $206,000 of interest costs.  

Computer Software Costs  

The Company capitalizes the cost of internal-use software which has a useful life in excess of one year in accordance with Statement of 
Position (SOP) No. 98-1, Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use. Subsequent additions, 
modifications or upgrades to internal-use software are capitalized only to the extent that they allow the software to perform a task it previously 
did not perform. Software maintenance and training costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Also, interest associated with 
the development of internal-use software is capitalized. Capitalized computer software costs are amortized using the straight-line method over a 
period of three to seven years.  

                                                              Average Lives  
                                                             --------------  
                                                               (In Years) 
 
Buildings                                                          30-35 
Central office equipment                                            5-10 
Outside communications plant                                       15-50 
Furniture, vehicles and other equipment                             3-15 



Income Taxes  

Verizon and its domestic subsidiaries, including the Company, file a consolidated federal income tax return. The Company participates in a tax-
sharing agreement with Verizon and remits tax payments to Verizon based on its respective tax liability on a separate company basis.  

The Exchanges are not taxable entities. The Exchanges' operating results are included within the Company for income tax purposes. Although 
the Exchanges contribute significant plant-related temporary differences (including investment tax credits) to the Company's deferred tax 
balances, the Company does not allocate income tax expense, income tax payables or deferred income taxes to the Exchanges. Deferred tax 
assets and liabilities are included in parent funding within these special-purpose financial statements. The provision for income taxes included 
in the accompanying statement of income for the year ended December 31, 2001 was calculated based on the income before income taxes of 
the Exchanges and the Company's 2001 effective tax rate adjusted for permanent differences not attributable to the Exchanges. The primary 
difference between the effective income tax rate and the statutory federal income tax rate is state income taxes, net of federal tax benefits.  

Advertising Costs  

The Company expenses advertising costs as they are incurred. In 2001, the Company incurred $1,303,000 in advertising costs.  

Employee Benefit Plans  

The Company participates in the Verizon benefit plans. Under these plans, pension and postretirement healthcare and life insurance benefits 
earned during the year, as well as interest on projected benefit obligations, are accrued currently. Prior service costs and credits resulting from 
changes in plan benefits are amortized over the average remaining service period of the employees expected to receive the benefits.  

Comprehensive Income  

The Company had no other comprehensive income components for the year ended December 31, 2001 or the quarters ended March 31, 2002 
and 2001; therefore, the Company's and the Exchange's comprehensive income is the same as net income.  

Derivative Instruments  

Effective January 1, 2001, the Company adopted SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, and SFAS No. 
138, Accounting for Certain Derivative Instruments and Certain Hedging Activities. SFAS No. 133 requires that all derivatives, including 
derivatives embedded in other financial instruments, be measured at fair value and recognized as either assets or liabilities on the Company's 
balance sheet. Changes in the fair values of derivatives not qualifying as hedges under SFAS No. 133 and any ineffective portion of hedges are 
recognized in earnings in the current period. Changes in the fair values of derivative instruments used effectively as fair value hedges are 
recognized in earnings, along with changes in the fair value of the hedged item. Changes in the fair value of the effective portions of cash flow 
hedges are reported in other comprehensive income, and recognized in earnings when the hedged item is recognized in earnings. The Company 
had no derivative instruments as of December 31, 2001 or March 31, 2002 and 2001.  

Recent Accounting Pronouncements  

Business Combinations  

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued SFAS No. 141, Business Combinations, which applies to business 
combinations occurring after June 30, 2001. SFAS No. 141 requires that the purchase method of accounting be used and includes guidance on 
the initial recognition and measurement of goodwill and other intangible assets acquired in the combination.  

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets  

Effective January 1, 2002, the Company adopted SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. SFAS No. 142 no longer permits the 
amortization of goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets. Instead, these assets must be reviewed annually (or more frequently under 
certain conditions) for impairment in accordance with this statement. This impairment test uses a fair value approach rather than the 
undiscounted cash flows approach previously required by SFAS No.  
121. The goodwill impairment test under SFAS No. 142 requires a two-step approach, which is performed at the reporting unit level, as defined 
in SFAS No.  
142. Step one identifies potential impairments by comparing the fair value of the reporting unit to its carrying amount. Step two, which is only 
performed if there is a potential impairment, compares the carrying amount of the reporting unit's goodwill to its implied value, as defined in 
SFAS No. 142. If the carrying amount of the reporting unit's goodwill exceeds the implied fair value of that goodwill, an impairment loss is 
recognized for an amount equal to that excess. Intangible assets that do not have indefinite lives will continue to be amortized over their useful 
lives and reviewed for impairment in accordance with SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets. The 
adoption of SFAS No. 142 did not impact the results of operations or statement of selected assets, selected liabilities and parent funding 
because the Company had no goodwill or other intangible assets as of January 1, 2002.  



Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets  

Effective January 1, 2002, the Company adopted SFAS No. 144. This standard supersedes SFAS No. 121 and the provisions of APB Opinion 
No. 30, Reporting the Results of Operations-Reporting the Effects of Disposal of a Segment of a Business, and Extraordinary, Unusual and 
Infrequently Occurring Events and Transactions, with regard to reporting the effects of a disposal of a segment of a business. SFAS No. 144 
establishes a single accounting model for assets to be disposed of by sale and addresses several SFAS No. 121 implementation issues. The 
adoption of SFAS No. 144 did not have a material effect on the results of operations or financial position.  

Asset Retirement Obligations  

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143, Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations. This standard provides the accounting for the 
cost of legal obligations associated with the retirement of long-lived assets. SFAS No. 143 requires that companies recognize the fair value of a 
liability for asset retirement obligations in the period in which the obligations are incurred and capitalize that amount as a part of the book value 
of the long-lived asset. That cost is then depreciated over the remaining life of the underlying long-lived asset. The Company is required to 
adopt SFAS No. 143 effective January 1, 2003. The Company is currently evaluating the impact this new standard will have on its future 
results of operations or financial position.  

4. Property, Plant and Equipment  

The Company maintains continuing property records, which identify specific property, plant and equipment (PP&E) balances, depreciation 
reserves and annual capital expenditure amounts for the Exchanges. The PP&E balance in the accompanying statement is based on these 
exchange-specific amounts and does not include any allocations of common assets utilized in providing the centralized services described in 
Note 2.  

PP&E of the Exchanges is summarized as follows at December 31, 2001 (dollars in thousands):  

 

5. Employee Benefit Plans  

The Company participates in Verizon's benefit plans. Verizon maintains noncontributory defined benefit pension plans for substantially all 
employees. The postretirement healthcare and life insurance plans for the Company's retirees and their dependents are both contributory and 
noncontributory and include a limit on the Company's share of cost for recent and future retirees. The Company also sponsors defined 
contribution savings plans to provide opportunities for eligible employees to save for retirement on a tax-deferred basis.  

The structure of Verizon's benefit plans does not provide for the separate determination of certain disclosures for the Company or the 
Exchanges.  

Pension Plans  

The Company participates in noncontributory defined benefit pension plans sponsored by Verizon covering substantially all employees. The 
benefits to be paid under these plans are generally based on years of credited service and average final earnings. Verizon's funding policy, 
subject to the minimum funding requirements of employee benefit and tax laws, is to contribute such amounts as are determined on an actuarial 
basis to accumulate funds sufficient to meet the plans' benefit obligation to employees upon their retirement. The Verizon plans are currently 
funded at levels in excess of projected benefit obligations. The assets of the plans consist primarily of corporate equities, government securities 
and corporate debt securities.  

The Exchanges' net periodic benefit credit was $11.1 million for 2001.  

The prepaid pension asset shown on the accompanying financial statements represents the net prepaid pension cost of active employees of the 
Exchanges and retired employees of the Company who were previously directly involved in the operations of the Exchanges to the Company's 
total active and retired employee participants of the plans.  

--------------------------------------------------- -----------------------------  
       Land                                                          $    3,280 
       Buildings                                                         69,247 
       Central office equipment                                         336,084 
       Outside communications plant                                     524,915 
       Furniture, vehicles and other work equipment                       25,624 
       Other                                                             33,898 
       Construction-in-progress                                             475 
--------------------------------------------------- -----------------------------  
                                                                        993,523 
       Less accumulated depreciation                                   (603,114)  
--------------------------------------------------- -----------------------------  
       Property, plant and equipment, net                            $  390,409 
=================================================== =============================  



The significant weighted-average assumptions used by Verizon to determine the pension credit and asset were as follows at December 31, 
2001:  

 

Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions  

Substantially all of the Company's employees are covered under postretirement healthcare and life insurance benefit plans sponsored by 
Verizon. The determination of benefit cost for postretirement health plans is generally based on comprehensive hospital, medical and surgical 
benefit plan provisions. The Company intends to fund amounts for postretirement benefits as deemed appropriate.  

The Exchange's postretirement benefit cost was $4.1 million for 2001. The postretirement cost for the Exchanges was based on an allocation of 
the Company's net postretirement cost. The allocation was based on the relative number of active employees of the Exchanges and retired 
employees of the Company who were previously involved in the operations of the Exchanges to the Company's total active and retired 
employee participants of the plans.  

The employee benefit obligations shown in the accompanying financial statements represents an allocation of the Company's actuarially 
determined postretirement healthcare and life insurance benefit liabilities. The allocation was based on the relative number of active employees 
of the Exchanges and retired employees of the Company who were previously involved in the operations of the Exchanges to the Company's 
total active and retired employee participants of the plans.  

The weighted-average assumptions used by Verizon in the actuarial computations for healthcare and life benefits were as follows at December 
31, 2001:  

 

Savings Plans and Employee Stock Ownership Plans  

Substantially all of the Company's employees are eligible to participate in savings plans maintained by Verizon. Verizon maintains a leveraged 
employee stock ownership plan (ESOP) for its management employees of the former GTE Companies. Under this plan, a certain percentage of 
eligible employee contributions is matched with shares of Verizon's common stock. Verizon recognizes leveraged ESOP cost based on the 
modified shares allocated method for this leveraged ESOP that held shares before December 31, 1989. The Company recognizes savings plans 
costs based on its matching obligation attributed to its participating management employees. In addition to the ESOP, Verizon also maintains a 
savings plan for nonmanagement employees. The Company's total savings plans costs were $1.4 million in 2001.  

6. Parent Funding and Interest Expense  

For purposes of these statements, all funding requirements have been summarized as "parent funding" without regard to whether the funding 
represents debt or equity. No specific debt instruments can be directly associated with the Exchanges, nor are separate equity accounts 
maintained. All net interest expense of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2001 and the quarters ended March 31, 2002 and 2001 
was allocated to the Exchanges and shown in the accompanying statements of income.  

7. Transactions with Affiliates  

Historically, extensive transactions have occurred between the Company and GTE Communications Systems Corporation (GTE 
Communications Systems), Verizon Information Services Inc., Verizon Data Services Inc., Verizon Services (including Verizon Services 
Corp., Verizon Services Group, and Verizon Corporate Services Group Inc.), GTE Funding Incorporated (GTE Funding) and other affiliates.  

Transactions with affiliates included in the accompanying financial statements are summarized as follows:  

Discount rate                                              7.25%  
Rate of compensation increase                              5.00 
Long-term rate of return on plan assets                    9.25 

Discount rate                                                7.25%  
Long-term rate of return on plan assets                      8.00 
Medical cost trend rate at end of year                      10.00 
Ultimate (year 2005)                                         5.00 

                                                        Year ended December 31, 
                                                                 2001 
--------------------------------------------------- -----------------------------  
                                                        (Dollars in Thousands) 
Operating revenues: 
  Verizon Information Services Inc.                         $        73 
  Other revenue from affiliates                                  21,190 
--------------------------------------------------- -----------------------------  
                                                                 21,263 
Operating expenses: 
  GTE Communications Systems                                      3,651 



 

The Company has an agreement to provide subscriber lists, billing and collection and other services to Verizon Information Services Inc. 
(Directories) (100% owned by Verizon) at fair market value. Directories bills the Company for printing and other costs associated with 
regulatory requirements included in the telephone directories, including the cost of any Extended Area Service sections in the directories. 
Directories also bills the Company for any advertising it places in the telephone directories. The amounts charged to the Company for these 
transactions are based on fair market value.  

GTE Communications Systems (100% owned by Verizon) provides construction and maintenance equipment, supplies and electronic repair 
services to the Company. Such purchases and services are recorded at the lower of cost, including a return realized by GTE Communications 
Systems, or fair market value.  

Verizon Data Services Inc. provides data processing services, software application development and maintenance, which generally benefit 
Verizon's operating telephone subsidiaries, including the Exchanges. The amounts charged to the Company for these affiliated transactions are 
based on proportional cost allocation methodologies.  

The Company has contractual arrangements with Verizon Services for the provision of various centralized services. These services are divided 
into two broad categories. The first category is comprised of network-related services, which generally benefit only Verizon's operating 
telephone subsidiaries. These services include marketing, sales, legal, accounting, finance, data processing, materials management, 
procurement, labor relations, and staff support for various network operations. The second category is comprised of overhead and support 
services, which generally benefit all subsidiaries of Verizon. Such services include corporate governance, corporate finance, external affairs, 
legal, media relations, employee communications, corporate advertising, human resources, and treasury. Cost may be directly assigned to one 
subsidiary or allocated to more than one subsidiary based on functional reviews of the work performed.  

The Company recognized net interest expense in connection with contractual arrangements with GTE Funding affiliates to provide short-term 
financing and cash management services to it.  

In 2000, the Company transferred certain advanced data assets to an affiliated company, Verizon Ventures III Inc. (Ventures III), in exchange 
for common stock of Ventures III. This transfer was done to satisfy a condition of the FCC's approval of the Bell Atlantic-GTE merger, which 
required the provision of advanced data services through a separate affiliate. Throughout 2001, the Company continued to invest in Ventures III 
through the transfer of additional assets. As a result of the transfers, the Company has an ownership interest in Ventures III, which is accounted 
for under the equity method of accounting. The Company recorded equity losses associated with its investment in Ventures III of $1,645,000 in 
2001. Its investment in Ventures III was $0 at December 31, 2001. The Company's ownership interest in Ventures III was 0.21% at December 
31, 2001.  

7. Transactions with Affiliates (continued)  

Other operating revenues include miscellaneous items of income resulting from transactions with other affiliates of the Company. These 
transactions include the provision of local and network access services, billing and collection services, rental of facilities and equipment, and 
sales and purchases of materials and supplies. The Company also earns fees from an affiliate for usage of its directory listings.  

The affiliated receivables and payables associated with these transactions have been included in parent funding.  

8. Regulatory Matters  

The Missouri Public Service Commission regulates the Company's intrastate business. The Company is also subject to regulation by the 
Federal Communications Commission for its interstate business operations.  

The Company's Missouri statutory price cap plan started in February 1999. Under the plan, the Company can rebalance rates in the first four 
years of the plan by increasing local rates by $1.50 and reducing switched access by an equivalent amount. Toll rates must be reduced by 10% 
in the first year. Nonbasic service rates may increase 8% annually. Earnings are not regulated.  

9. Commitments and Contingencies  

  Verizon Information Services Inc.                                 764 
  Verizon Data Services Inc.                                     13,139 
  Verizon Services                                               26,091 
--------------------------------------------------- -----------------------------  
                                                                 43,645 
Other expense: 
   Equity loss from Ventures III                                 (1,645) 
 
Interest expense, net: 
   Interest expense to GTE, net                                  18,884 
 
Plant, property and equipment: 
   Purchases from GTE Communications Systems                      8,083 



The Company has noncancelable operating leases covering certain buildings, office space and equipment. The Company's rental expense was 
$12,339,000 in 2001. Minimum rental commitments under these noncancelable leases are approximately $410,000, $364,000, $356,000, 
$111,000 and $5,000 for the years 2002 through 2006, respectively, and $52,000 thereafter.  

Various legal actions and regulatory proceedings are pending to which the Company is a party and there are claims which, if asserted, may lead 
to other legal actions. Management does not expect that the ultimate resolution of pending regulatory and legal matters in future periods will 
have a material effect on the financial position of the Company or the Exchanges, but could have a material effect on the results of operations.  

10. Segment Reporting  

The Exchanges do not have separate reportable segments of their own. The Exchanges are part of the Company, which has one reportable 
segment - the provision of domestic wireline telecommunications services. Specifically, the Company provides local telephone services 
including voice and data transport, enhanced and custom calling features, network access, directory assistance and private lines. In addition, the 
Company provides customer premises equipment distribution, billing and collection, and pay telephone services.  

11. Financial Instruments  

Financial instruments that subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of short-term investments and trade 
receivables.  
Concentrations of credit risk with respect to trade receivables other than those from AT&T Corp. (AT&T) are limited due to the large number 
of customers. The Company's revenues generated from services provided to AT&T (primarily network access and billing and collection) were 
10.6% of total operating revenues for 2001.  

While the Company may be exposed to credit losses due to the nonperformance of its counterparties, the Company considers this risk remote 
and does not expect the settlement of these transactions to have a material effect on its results of operations or financial position.  

* * * * * * * *  

CenturyTel, Inc. Unaudited Pro Forma Consolidated Condensed Financial Information Introduction  

Background  

On August 1, 2002, CenturyTel, Inc. (the "Company") sold substantially all of its wireless operations to an affiliate of ALLTEL Corporation 
("Alltel") for approximately $1.58 billion in cash. In connection with this transaction, the Company divested its (i) interests in its majority-
owned and operated cellular systems, which at June 30, 2002 served approximately 783,000 customers and had access to approximately 7.8 
million pops (as defined in the Company's most recent 10-K Report), (ii) minority cellular equity interests representing approximately 1.8 
million pops at June 30, 2002, and (iii) licenses to provide personal communications services covering 1.3 million pops in Wisconsin and Iowa. 

On July 1, 2002, an affiliate of the Company acquired approximately 300,000 telephone access lines and related property and equipment 
comprising Verizon's local exchange operations in 90 exchanges in predominantly rural markets throughout Alabama for approximately $1.0 
billion cash. On or about August 31, 2002, the Company is expected to consummate the acquisition of approximately 360,000 telephone access 
lines and related property and equipment comprising Verizon's local exchange operations in 98 exchanges in predominantly rural markets 
throughout Missouri for approximately $1.159 billion cash. The acquired assets include Verizon's assets used to provide digital subscriber line 
("DSL") and other high speed data services within the purchased exchanges in both states and an aggregate of approximately 2,800 route miles 
of fiber optic cable within the purchased exchanges in both states. In addition to the continued provision of traditional local exchange telephone 
services, the Company intends to provide long distance, Internet access (including DSL access service), and other advanced technology 
services in certain of the acquired service areas. For a discussion of the Company's long-term financing plans, see "- Pro Forma Information" 
below.  

The results of operations of the properties acquired and to be acquired will be included in the Company's consolidated financial statements 
from and after their respective dates of acquisition. The results of operations of the properties sold will be included in the Company's 
consolidated financial statements as discontinued operations through August 1, 2002.  

Pro Forma Information  

The following unaudited pro forma consolidated condensed balance sheet as of March 31, 2002 and the unaudited pro forma consolidated 
condensed statements of income for the year ended December 31, 2001 and the three months ended March 31, 2002 are based on the historical 
consolidated results of operations and financial condition of CenturyTel, Inc. and its subsidiaries, and reflect the Company's wireless operations 
as discontinued operations. No interest expense was allocated to discontinued operations and corporate overhead costs previously absorbed by 
the wireless operations are reflected as an expense within continuing operations.  

In addition, the unaudited pro forma consolidated condensed balance sheet as of March 31, 2002 and the unaudited pro forma consolidated 
condensed statements of income for the year ended December 31, 2001 and three months ended March 31, 2002 also reflect (i) the effects of 



acquiring the Verizon properties for an aggregate of $2.159 billion cash, (ii) the effects of divesting the Company's wireless operations for cash 
proceeds that approximated $1.58 billion pre-tax (which are anticipated to be approximately $1.255 billion after-tax) and  
(iii) steps the Company has taken or anticipates taking to finance the Verizon acquisitions.  

In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, "Accounting for Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets", effective 
January 1, 2002, goodwill is no longer subject to amortization; therefore, the accompanying 2001 pro forma statement of income does not 
reflect amortization of the estimated goodwill associated with the acquisition of the Verizon properties.  

Pro forma adjustments, and the assumptions on which they are based, are described in the accompanying notes to the unaudited pro forma 
consolidated condensed financial information.  

Although the Company's permanent financing plans are not yet complete and will be dependent upon market conditions and other factors, the 
pro forma financial information has been prepared assuming that the aggregate purchase price for the Verizon assets of $2.159 billion will be 
financed on a long-term basis substantially with (i) $1.255 billion of after-tax proceeds from the August 1, 2002 sale of its wireless business, 
(ii) net proceeds of $483.4 million from the sale of equity units in May 2002 and (iii) $420.6 million of proceeds from a sale of debt securities 
during the second half of 2002. If the Company requires cash before these sources of long-term financing are available, the Company intends to 
borrow cash on a short-term basis. Conversely, if the Company receives cash from these sources before it needs such cash, the Company 
intends to repay short-term debt. For purposes of the pro forma information, these short-term borrowings and repayments have been excluded, 
as have adjustments for estimated transaction costs.  

The pro forma financial information related to the Verizon acquisitions has been prepared using the purchase method of accounting and is 
based on the assumptions that the purchase of all of the Verizon properties took place as of March 31, 2002 for purposes of the pro forma 
balance sheet and as of January 1, 2001 for purposes of the pro forma statements of income. In accordance with the purchase method of 
accounting, the actual consolidated financial statements of the Company will reflect the Verizon acquisitions only from and after their 
respective dates of acquisition.  

The pro forma financial information related to the sale of the wireless operations has been prepared based on the assumptions that the sale of 
those operations took place as of March 31, 2002 for purposes of the pro forma balance sheet and as of January 1, 2001 for purposes of the pro 
forma statements of income. The actual consolidated financial statements of the Company will reflect the operations of the wireless properties 
(as discontinued operations) until August 1, 2002.  

The unaudited pro forma consolidated condensed financial data included below does not give effect to any potential revenue enhancements, 
cost reductions, or other operating efficiencies that could result from the Verizon acquisitions, including, but not limited to (i) offering long 
distance, Internet access and other advanced technology services to an increased number of customers in the acquired markets or (ii) cost 
savings that may be associated with operating and administering the acquired properties with the Company's existing personnel and operating 
assets.  

The pro forma information is presented for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily indicative of the operating results or financial 
position that would have occurred if such transactions had been consummated on the dates and in accordance with the assumptions described 
herein, nor is it necessarily indicative of future operating results or financial position. The historical Verizon financial information reflects the 
operating and management structure of Verizon and is not necessarily indicative of the results of operations that may be obtained with respect 
to the acquired properties under the Company's operating and management structure.  

You are urged to read the financial information below, along with the Company's publicly available historical consolidated financial statements 
and accompanying notes and the special purpose financial statements of the Verizon operations acquired or to be acquired appearing elsewhere 
in this combined Current Report on Form 8-K and Form 8-K/A.  

CENTURYTEL, INC.  

Pro Forma Consolidated Condensed Statement of Income Year ended December 31, 2001  

 
(Unaudited)  

 

                                                                                    Pro forma        P ro forma 
                                                  C enturyTel         Verizon       adjustments     con solidated 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ----------  
                                                      (Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)  
OPERATING REVENUES 
   Telephone                                    $  1,505,733         552,127                 -        2,057,860 
   Other                                             173,771               -                 -          173,771 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- --------- 
        Total operating revenues                   1,679,504         552,127                 -        2,231,631 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- --------- 
 



 

(1) CenturyTel's basic earnings per share and diluted earnings per share for the year ended December 31, 2001 were $1.72 and $1.70, after 
eliminating the effect of nonrecurring net gains associated with our wireless operations.  

See accompanying notes to unaudited pro forma consolidated condensed financial information.  

OPERATING EXPENSES 
   Cost of sales and operating expenses 
    (exclusive of depreciation and amortization)     826,948         233,108            14,900        1,074,956 
   Corporate overhead costs allocable to 
    discontinued operations                           20,213               -                 -           20,213 
   Depreciation and amortization                     407,038          81,498                 -          488,536 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- --------- 
        Total operating expenses                   1,254,199         314,606            14,900        1,583,705 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- --------- 
 
OPERATING INCOME                                     425,305         237,521           (14,900)         647,926 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- --------- 
 
OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSE 
   Nonrecurring gains and losses, net                 33,043               -                 -           33,043 
   Interest expense                                 (225,523)        (21,388)          (45,898)        (292,809)  
   Other income and expense                               32          (2,482)                -           (2,450)  
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- --------- 
        Total other income (expense)                (192,448)        (23,870)          (45,898)        (262,216)  
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- --------- 
 
Income from continuing operations 
  before income tax expense                          232,857         213,651           (60,798)         385,710 
Income tax expense                                    88,711          87,312           (24,319)         151,704 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- --------- 
Income from continuing operations                    144,146         126,339           (36,479)         234,006 
Discontinued operations, net of tax                  198,885               -          (198,885)               - 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- --------- 
Net income                                       $   343,031         126,339          (235,364)         234,006 
=================================================== =================================================== ========= 
 
BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE 
   From continuing operations                    $      1.02             .90              (.26)            1.66 
   From continuing operations, as adjusted 
     for goodwill amortization                   $      1.35             .90              (.26)            1.99 
   From discontinued operations                  $      1.41               -             (1.41)               - 
   From discontinued operations, as adjusted 
     for goodwill amortization                   $      1.48               -             (1.48)               - 
   Basic earnings per share                      $      2.43 (1)         .90             (1.67)            1.66 
   Basic earnings per share, as adjusted 
     for goodwill amortization                   $      2.83             .90             (1.74)            1.99 
 
DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE 
   From continuing operations                    $      1.01             .89              (.26)            1.64 
   From continuing operations, as adjusted 
     for goodwill amortization                   $      1.34             .89              (.26)            1.97 
   From discontinued operations                  $      1.40               -             (1.40)               - 
   From discontinued operations, as adjusted 
     for goodwill amortization                   $      1.47               -             (1.47)               - 
      Diluted earnings per share                 $      2.41 (1)         .89             (1.65)            1.64 
      Diluted earnings per share, as adjusted 
        for goodwill amortization                $      2.81             .89             (1.72)            1.97 
 
AVERAGE BASIC SHARES 
  OUTSTANDING                                        140,743         140,743           140,743          140,743 
=================================================== =================================================== ========= 
 
AVERAGE DILUTED SHARES 
  OUTSTANDING                                        142,307         142,307           142,307          142,307 
=================================================== =================================================== ========= 



CENTURYTEL, INC.  

Pro Forma Consolidated Condensed Statement of Income Three months ended March 31, 2002  

 
(Unaudited)  

 

See accompanying notes to unaudited pro forma consolidated condensed financial information.  

                                                                                    Pro forma        P ro forma 
                                                 Ce nturyTel          Verizon        adjustments     co nsolidated  
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ----------  
                                                         (Dollars in thousands, except per share amoun ts) 
OPERATING REVENUES 
     Telephone                                 $    372,731          132,685                 -          505,416 
     Other                                           50,187                -                 -           50,187 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- --------- 
          Total operating revenues                  422,918          132,685                 -          555,603 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- --------- 
 
OPERATING EXPENSES 
     Cost of sales and operating expenses 
       (exclusive of depreciation and amortization)  206,844           48,403             3,568          258,815 
     Corporate overhead costs allocable to 
       discontinued operations                        4,798               -                  -            4,798 
     Depreciation and amortization                   92,227           21,130                 -          113,357 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- --------- 
          Total operating expenses                  303,869           69,533             3,568          376,970 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- --------- 
 
OPERATING INCOME                                    119,049           63,152            (3,568)         178,633 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- --------- 
 
OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSE 
     Interest expense                               (50,648)          (4,457)          (12,365)         (67,470)  
     Other income and expense                        (2,268)              15                 -           (2,253)  
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ----------  
          Total other income (expense)              (52,916)          (4,442)          (12,365)         (69,723)  
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ----------  
 
Income from continuing operations 
  before income tax expense                          66,133           58,710           (15,933)         108,910 
Income tax expense                                   23,276           22,843            (6,373)          39,746 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- --------- 
Income from continuing operations                    42,857           35,867            (9,560)          69,164 
Discontinued operations, net of tax                  27,910                -           (27,910)               - 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- --------- 
Net income                                     $     70,767           35,867           (37,470)          69,164 
=================================================== =================================================== ========= 
 
BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE 
     From continuing operations                $        .30              .25              (.07)             .49 
     From discontinued operations              $        .20                -              (.20)               - 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- --------- 
     Basic earnings per share                  $        .50              .25              (.27)             .49 
=================================================== =================================================== ========= 
 
DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE 
     From continuing operations                $        .30              .25              (.07)             .48 
     From discontinued operations              $        .20                -              (.20)               - 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- --------- 
     Diluted earnings per share                $        .50              .25              (.26)             .48 
=================================================== =================================================== ========= 
 
AVERAGE BASIC SHARES 
  OUTSTANDING                                       141,051          141,051           141,051          141,051 
=================================================== =================================================== ========= 
 
AVERAGE DILUTED SHARES 
  OUTSTANDING                                       142,654          142,654           142,654          142,654 
=================================================== =================================================== ========= 



CENTURYTEL, INC.  

Pro Forma Consolidated Condensed Balance Sheet March 31, 2002  

 
(Unaudited)  

 

 

See accompanying notes to unaudited pro forma consolidated condensed financial information.  

                                                                                    Pro forma         Pro forma 
                                                Cen turyTel          Verizon        adjustments      co nsolidated  
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ----------  
                                                                      (Dollars in thousands) 
            ASSETS 
 
CURRENT ASSETS 
     Cash and cash equivalents                 $     52,138                -                 -           52,138 
     Accounts receivable                            203,267           85,300                 -          288,567 
     Materials and supplies                           9,388            1,666                 -           11,054 
     Other                                           11,904           16,588                 -           28,492 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- --------- 
          Total current assets                      276,697          103,554                 -          380,251 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- --------- 
 
NET PROPERTY, PLANT 
  AND EQUIPMENT                                   2 ,728,299          638,067                 -        3,366,366 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- --------- 
 
INVESTMENTS AND OTHER ASSETS 
     Goodwill                                     2 ,116,265                -         1,487,770        3,604,035 
     Other                                          425,636          132,999          (117,494)         441,141 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- --------- 
          Total investments and other assets      2 ,541,901          132,999         1,370,276        4,045,176 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- --------- 
 
ASSETS HELD FOR SALE                                832,543                -          (832,543)               - 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- --------- 
 
TOTAL ASSETS                                   $  6 ,379,440          874,620           537,733        7,791,793 
=================================================== =================================================== ========= 
 
      LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 
 
CURRENT LIABILITIES 
     Short-term debt and current 
       maturities of long-term debt            $    921,966                -                 -          921,966 
     Accounts payable                                93,959            5,323            (5,323)          93,959 
     Accrued expenses and other liabilities         183,381           44,255           (44,255)         183,381 
     Advance billing and customer deposits           30,152           12,552                 -           42,704 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- --------- 
          Total current liabilities               1 ,229,458           62,130           (49,578)       1,242,010 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- --------- 
 
LONG-TERM DEBT                                    2 ,081,396                -           904,000        2,985,396 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- --------- 
 
DEFERRED CREDITS AND 
  OTHER LIABILITIES                                 508,502           73,344            11,654          593,500 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- --------- 
 
LIABILITIES RELATED TO ASSETS 
  HELD FOR SALE                                     155,679                -          (155,679)               - 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- --------- 
 
PARENT FUNDING                                            -          739,146          (739,146)               - 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- --------- 
 
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 
     Common stock                                   141,327                -                 -          141,327 
     Paid-in capital                                528,090                -           (11,654)         516,436 
     Retained earnings                            1 ,729,263                -           578,136        2,307,399 
     Unearned ESOP shares                            (2,250)               -                 -           (2,250)  
     Preferred stock - non-redeemable                 7,975                -                 -            7,975 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- --------- 
          Total stockholders' equity              2 ,404,405                -           566,482        2,970,887 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- --------- 
 
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY                   $  6 ,379,440          874,620           537,733        7,791,793 
=================================================== =================================================== ========= 



Notes to Unaudited Pro Forma Consolidated Condensed Financial Information  

(A) Purchase of Verizon assets.  

Costs of acquisition. The total cash purchase price of the Verizon assets has been assumed to be $2.159 billion.  

Operations. As explained further above, the pro forma adjustments do not consider the effect of possible revenue enhancements, cost reductions 
or other operating efficiencies that may occur in connection with combining the operations of the acquired properties with the Company's 
operations.  

(B) Sale of Wireless Operations.  

Presentation of wireless operations. The wireless operations have been reflected as discontinued operations on the Company's statements of 
income and the assets and liabilities of the wireless operations have been reflected as held for sale on the Company's balance sheet.  

Proceeds from disposition. The after-tax proceeds from the sale of the wireless operations has been assumed to be $1.255 billion.  

(C) March 31, 2002 Balance Sheet Pro Forma Adjustments.  

The pro forma adjustments applicable to the acquisition of the Verizon properties with respect to the unaudited pro forma consolidated 
condensed balance sheet as of March 31, 2002, as set forth below, reflect preliminary allocations of the aggregate purchase price to the 
acquired properties. Such preliminary allocations include the assumption that the fair value of property, plant and equipment will approximate 
the carrying value on the date of acquisition. The preliminary estimates of the fair value of the noncurrent assets and liabilities are subject to 
change upon completion of our valuation analysis.  

The Company anticipates assigning a portion of the purchase price to identifiable intangible assets (including customer base) in accordance 
with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 141 and amortizing such asset over its useful life. However, the Company is still in the 
early stages of the valuation process since only one of the Verizon acquisitions has been consummated to date. Thus, an estimate to allocate a 
portion of the purchase price to identifiable intangibles, the amortization of which will reduce net income, has not been included in the 
accompanying pro forma information. The Company believes the impact of the amortization of such identifiable intangible assets will not be 
material to its results of operations.  

To the extent that depreciation and amortization expense that results from the finalization of the valuation process is different than that 
presented in the accompanying pro forma information, earnings per share will be effected by $.01 per share for every $2.0 million difference in 
depreciation and amortization expense. Thus, if the Company's actual depreciation and amortization expense is $2.0 million higher than 
assumed in the accompanying pro forma information, then the Company's actual earnings per share will be $.01 per share lower than presented 
herein.  

As explained further above under "Pro Forma Information," the pro forma financial information has been prepared assuming that the aggregate 
purchase price of $2.159 billion will be financed on a long-term basis with (i) $1.255 billion of after-tax proceeds from the August 1, 2002 sale 
of the Company's wireless business, (ii) net proceeds from the May 2002 sale of $483.4 million of equity units (comprised of senior notes and 
purchase contracts entitling the holders to, among other things, contract adjustment payments) and (iii) proceeds of $420.6 million from a sale 
of debt securities during the second half of 2002. The pro forma financial information has been prepared assuming that the weighted average 
interest rate of the $904 million of net indebtedness to be incurred (including indebtedness associated with senior notes issued in connection 
with the equity units) will be 7.4%. Based on conversation with its lenders and financial advisors, the Company believes that sufficient 
financing should be available. However, given the recent decrease in the availability of financing for communications companies generally, 
there can be no assurance that sufficient financing will be available on attractive terms. There is no adjustment to reduce long-term debt as a 
result of the discontinued operations because the Company has no outstanding indebtedness directly related to its wireless operations.  



 

(1) Reflects (a) $2.159 billion raised in the manner discussed herein and (b) delivery of $2.159 billion to purchase the assets from Verizon.  

(2) Reflects the elimination of Verizon's parent debt and equity funding.  

(3) Reflects the elimination of Verizon's excess pension assets. Verizon will retain these assets, together with all income generated by such 
assets. Verizon's historical financial statements reflect such assets and income.  

(4) Reflects the elimination of Verizon's accounts payable and accrued expenses and other liabilities. These liabilities will be retained by 
Verizon.  

(5) Reflects (a) gross proceeds received from the sale of the Company's wireless operations of $1.58 billion, elimination of assets and liabilities 
held for sale and pre-tax gain from the sale of wireless interests, (b) taxes paid related to the gain on sale of wireless operations of $325 million 
and (c) a $1.255 billion reduction in the amount of debt that would otherwise be incurred absent the divestiture.  

(6) Reflects, as a reduction of equity, the present value of contract adjustment payments related to the equity unit issuance.  

                                         March 31, 2002 Balance Sheet Pro Forma Adjustments 
 
                                              (Asse ts)                 Accrued              Deferred 
         Cash                  Investments   liabil ities              expenses     Long-     credits               Paid- 
       and cash                 and other       hel d     Accounts     and other    term     and other    Parent      in     Retained  
      equivalents    Goodwill    assets       for s ale    payable    liabilities   debt    liabilities    funding  capital   earnings  
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------  
                                                       (Dollars in thousands) 
 
(1) (a)$ 2,159,000                                                               2,159,000 
    (b) (2,159,000) 2,159,000 
 
(2)                  (739,146)                                                                          (739,146) 
 
(3)                   117,494    (117,494) 
 
(4)                   (49,578)                             (5,323)     (44,255) 
 
(5) (a)  1,580,000                            (832, 543)                                                                     903,136 
                                               155, 679 
    (b)   (325,000)                                                                                                        (325,000)  
    (c) (1,255,000)                                                             (1,255,000) 
 
(6)                                                                                            11,654              (11,654) 
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------  
       $         -  1,487,770    (117,494)    (676, 864)    (5,323)     (44,255)    904,000     11,654   (739,146)  (11,654) 578,136 
=================================================== =================================================== ==============================  



(D) December 31, 2001 Income Statement Pro Forma Adjustments.  

Set forth below are the pro forma adjustments applicable to the acquisition of the Verizon assets and to the divestiture of the wireless 
operations with respect to the unaudited pro forma consolidated condensed statement of income for the year ended December 31, 2001.  

December 31, 2001 Income Statement Pro Forma Adjustments  

 

(1) See footnote (C). Use of an assumed rate .125% higher or lower than 7.4% on net borrowings would have changed net income by 
approximately $678,000.  

(2) See footnote (C), adjustment number (2).  

(3) See footnote (C), adjustment number (3).  

(E) March 31, 2002 Income Statement Pro Forma Adjustments.  

Set forth below are the pro forma adjustments applicable to the acquisition of the Verizon assets and to the divestiture of the wireless 
operations with respect to the unaudited pro forma consolidated condensed statement of income for the three months ended March 31, 2002.  

March 31, 2002 Income Statement Pro Forma Adjustments  

                                          Cost of S ales                                Discontinued  
                                          and Opera ting    Interest       Income       operations, 
                                            Expense s        expense     tax expense     net of tax 
--------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------------------  
                                                            (Dollars in thousands) 
Interest on net borrowings of $904 
  million at an assumed rate of 7.4% (1)  $                 66,896 
 
Eliminate Verizon interest expense 
  on parent funding (2)                                    (21,388) 
 
Eliminate pension credit related to 
  excess pension assets which will 
   remain with Verizon (3)                      14, 900 
 
Record amortization of discounted 
  contract adjustment payment liability 
  related to equity unit issuance                              390 
 
Tax benefit relating to pro forma 
  adjustments (assuming a 40% tax rate)                                  (24,319) 
 
Eliminate discontinued operations 
  of wireless business                                                                   (198,885) 
--------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------------------  
                                          $     14, 900      45,898       (24,319)        (198,885) 
=================================================== ================================================  

                                          Cost of S ales                               Discontinued 
                                          and Opera ting    Interest      Income       operations, 
                                            Expense s        expense    tax expense    net of tax 
--------------------------------------------------- ----------------------------------------------- 
                                                           (Dollars in thousands) 
Interest on net borrowings of $904 
  million at an assumed rate of 
  7.4% (1)                               $                  16,724 
 
Eliminate Verizon interest expense 
  on parent funding (2)                                     (4,457) 
 
Eliminate pension credit related 
  to excess pension assets which will 
  remain with Verizon (3)                        3, 568 
 
Record amortization of discounted 
  contract adjustment payment 
  liability related to equity 
  unit issuance                                                 98 
 
Tax benefit relating to pro forma 
  adjustments (assuming a 40% 
  tax rate)                                                               (6,373) 
 



 

(1) See footnote (C). Use of an assumed rate .125% higher or lower than 7.4% on net borrowings would have changed net income by 
approximately $170,000.  

(2) See footnote (C), adjustment number (2).  

(3) See footnote (C), adjustment number (3).  

(F) Reclassifications.  

Certain reclassifications have been made to the historical financial information to conform to the presentation of the condensed pro forma 
information.  

(G) Verizon Historical Results.  

All amounts reflected above under the headings "Verizon" are based on special purpose financial statements of the Verizon acquired operations 
appearing elsewhere in this report. In connection with the preparation of these special purpose financial statements, Verizon made numerous 
assumptions and allocations where specific data was not available pertaining to the acquired assets. Because of the significant amount of 
allocations and estimates used to prepare these special purpose financial statements and because the Company will operate these assets under a 
different operating and management structure, they may not reflect the financial position and results of operations of the acquired properties 
after such properties are acquired by the Company.  

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS  

In addition to historical information, this combined Form 8-K and Form 8-K/A includes certain forward-looking statements and estimates that 
are based on current expectations only, and are subject to a number of risks, uncertainties and assumptions, many of which are beyond the 
control of the Company. Actual events and results may differ materially from those anticipated, estimated or projected if one or more of these 
risks or uncertainties materialize, or if underlying assumptions prove incorrect. Factors that could affect actual results include but are not 
limited to: the Company's ability to successfully and timely consummate its pending Missouri Verizon acquisition, including the receipt of all 
governmental and other approvals, consents or waivers necessary to complete this acquisition; the availability of capital on terms attractive to 
the Company; the prevailing level of interest rates; the Company's ability to effectively integrate new businesses into its operations; possible 
changes in the demand for, or pricing of, the Company's products and services; the Company's ability to successfully introduce new offerings 
on a timely and cost-effective basis; and the effects of more general factors such as changes in overall market or economic conditions or in 
legislation, regulation or public policy. These and other uncertainties related to the business are described in greater detail in Item 1 to the 
Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001. You are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these 
forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date hereof. The Company undertakes no obligation to update any of its forward-
looking statements for any reason.  

SIGNATURE  

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the 
undersigned thereunto duly authorized.  

CenturyTel, Inc.  

 

Eliminate discontinued operations 
  of wireless business                                                                      (27,910)  
--------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------------------ 
                                          $      3, 568      12,365        (6,373)           (27,910)  
=================================================== ================================================ 

Dated:  August 13, 2002                        By: /s/ Neil A. Sweasy 
                                                 ---------------------- 
                                                 Neil A. Sweasy 
                                                 Vice President and Controller 



Exhibit 2.1(b)  

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO STOCK PURCHASE AGREEMENT  

THIS AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO STOCK PURCHASE AGREEMENT ("Amendment") dated as of July 31, 2002, is entered into between 
CenturyTel, Inc., a Louisiana corporation ("Seller"), and ALLTEL Communications, Inc., a Delaware corporation ("Buyer").  

RECITALS  

Buyer and Seller desire to amend a Stock Purchase Agreement dated as of March 19, 2002, between Buyer and Seller (the "Agreement"), in the 
manner specified herein.  

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants and agreements herein contained the parties agree as follows:  

1. The definition of "Excluded Cellular Interest Amounts" in Section 1.1 of the Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with 
the following:  

"Excluded Cellular Interest Amounts" means, with respect to any Excluded Cellular Interest, the greater of (i) the Agreed Value of the Cellular 
Interest that is or has become an Excluded Cellular Interest in accordance with Sections 2.4(c), 5.5(d) or 5.19 or (ii) any payments received, or 
to be received, by Seller or any of its Affiliates in the event an Excluded Cellular Interest has been sold or transferred, or is to be sold or 
transferred, by Seller or any Affiliate of Seller to any First Refusal Right Holder.  

2. The definition of "Excluded Cellular Interest" in Section 1.1 of the Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with the 
following:  

"Excluded Cellular Interest" is a Cellular Interest that is or becomes excluded, in accordance with the terms and conditions of Sections 2.4(c), 
5.5(d) or 5.19, from the Cellular Interests for which the Buyer is to assume Control at the Closing.  

3. The following is hereby added in the Agreement after Section 2.4(b) of the Agreement and before Section 2.5 of the Agreement:  

"(c) Buyer acknowledges that it will not be acquiring the Company's Cellular Interest in the Lafayette MSA Limited Partnership ("Lafayette 
Partnership") and Buyer and Seller agree that such Cellular Interest in the Lafayette Partnership constitutes an Excluded Cellular Interest for 
purposes of this Agreement. Seller shall cause the Company to transfer and assign on or before the Closing Date, all right, title and interest of 
the Company in and to the Company's Excluded Cellular Interest in the Lafayette Partnership to Seller. Any transfer or other actions taken with 
respect to the Company's Excluded Cellular Interest in the Lafayette Partnership pursuant to this Section 2.4(c) shall be without recourse to, 
and shall not impose any Liability upon, any CenturyTel Entity from and after the Closing Date. Without limiting the generality of the 
preceding sentence and in addition to the indemnification obligations of Seller set forth elsewhere herein, Seller shall indemnify, defend and 
hold harmless each Buyer Indemnitee against and in respect of any and all Losses or Taxes incurred or suffered by any Buyer Indemnitee that 
result from, relate to or arise out of any transfer or other action contemplated by this Section 2.4(c). With respect to such Excluded Cellular 
Interest, the Base Purchase Price shall be reduced in accordance with Section 2.2 by an amount equal to all Excluded Cellular Interest 
Amounts."  

4. Section 2.5 of the Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:  

"2.5 Closing. Unless this Agreement shall have been earlier terminated in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the 
Closing shall occur, unless otherwise agreed to in writing by the parties, at 9:00 a.m. central time on the first Business Day of the calendar 
month immediately following the calendar month in which the last condition precedent set forth in Article 6 (other than such other conditions 
precedent that are not capable of being satisfied until the Closing) is satisfied or waived. If the Closing occurs, for purposes of this Agreement 
the Closing shall be deemed to have occurred at 12:01 a.m. central time on the Closing Date (the "Effective Time"). The Closing shall take 
place at the office of Buyer in Little Rock, Arkansas."  

5. The third sentence of Section 8.12(c) of the Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:  

"As soon as reasonably practicable after the Closing Date (but in no event later than the date that is 30 Business Days prior to the date required 
to timely file the Section 338 Forms with the appropriate Taxing authorities), Buyer and Seller shall execute IRS Form(s) 8023 and any forms 
required to make any elections under state or local law that are analogous to a Section 338(h)(10) Election."  

6. The following is hereby added in the Agreement after Section 9.5 of the Agreement and before Article 10 of the Agreement:  

"9.6 Lafayette Partnership. (a) Because the Lafayette Partnership holds the B Band FCC Authorization serving Iberville Parish, Louisiana and 
Buyer's Affiliate holds the A Band FCC Authorization serving Iberville Parish, Louisiana, the Cellular Interest in the Lafayette Partnership has 
been designated an Excluded Cellular Interest in accordance with  
Section 2.4(c) of the Agreement. For a period of six months following the Closing Date, each of Seller and Buyer shall use its commercially 



reasonable efforts to obtain (i) an affirmative waiver from the FCC of its cross ownership rule set forth in 47 C.F.R. Section 22.942 and (ii) an 
amendment to the Lafayette Partnership duly executed by each of the partners in the Lafayette Partnership in the form attached hereto as 
Schedule 9.6(a) or such other form approved in writing by Buyer which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, in each case, necessary to 
permit Buyer to acquire the entire right, title and interest of Seller in and to Seller's Excluded Cellular Interest in the Lafayette Partnership 
(inclusive of the B Band FCC Authorization serving Iberville Parish, Louisiana) and to retain the ownership held by Buyer's Affiliate of the A 
Band FCC Authorization serving Iberville Parish, Louisiana (the waiver and amendment set forth in Section 9.6(a)(i) and (ii) shall be referred 
to collectively as the "Lafayette Waivers").  

(b) The Lafayette Waivers shall (i) be Final Orders, (ii) be free from any adverse terms, conditions and restrictions on the business or 
operations of Buyer or its Affiliates, including, without limitation, any requirement that Buyer or its Affiliates divest any FCC Authorization 
and (iii) not result in the waiver of any right asserted by Buyer or its Affiliates that is or is reasonably likely to be adverse to Buyer or its 
Affiliates.  

(c) If the parties obtain the Lafayette Waivers in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in this Section 9.6, Seller agrees to grant, 
sell, transfer and deliver to Buyer the entire right, title and interest of Seller in and to, and Buyer agrees to purchase from Seller, the Excluded 
Cellular Interest in the Lafayette Partnership (inclusive of the B Band FCC Authorization serving Iberville Parish, Louisiana) for an amount of 
cash equal to the Agreed Value attributable to the Excluded Cellular Interest in the Lafayette Partnership on terms and conditions substantially 
similar to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, including, without limitation, substantially similar representations, warranties, 
covenants and agreements (the "Lafayette Purchase Agreement").  

(d) From and following the Closing Date, Seller shall, and shall cause its Affiliates to, perform and comply with the covenants set forth in 
Sections 5.3, 5.4, 5.9 and 5.12 of this Agreement with respect to the Excluded Cellular Interest in the Lafayette Partnership regardless of the 
fact that such Cellular Interest is an Excluded Cellular Interest.  

(e) In the event (i) the parties are unable to obtain the Lafayette Waivers in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Section 9.6 on or 
before the last day of the six month period following the Closing or (ii) any other condition to Buyer's obligation to purchase Seller's Excluded 
Cellular Interest in the Lafayette Partnership set forth in the Lafayette Purchase Agreement has not been satisfied or fulfilled on or before the 
last day of the six month period following the Closing, Buyer shall have no obligation or liability of any type or description whatsoever with 
respect to the Seller's Excluded Cellular Interest in the Lafayette Partnership and this Section 9.6 shall become void and of no further force or 
effect."  

7. The reference to the Real Property located at 371 Bert Kouns Industrial Loop, Shreveport, Louisiana set forth on Schedule 3.15(a) Real 
Property - Retail of the Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety.  

8. Capitalized terms used herein but not otherwise defined shall have the meaning ascribed to such terms in the Agreement.  

9. All other terms and conditions of the Agreement, not otherwise inconsistent with this Amendment, shall remain in full force and effect.  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Amendment on the date first written above.  

CENTURYTEL, INC.  

 

ALLTEL COMMUNICATIONS, INC.  

 

By:  /s/ Stacey Goff 
   ____________________________ 
     Name:  Stacey Goff 
     Title: Vice President and 
            Assistant Legal Counsel 

By:  /s/ Francis Xavier Frantz 
   ____________________________ 
     Name:  Francis Xavier Frantz 
     Title: Executive Vice President 



Exhibit 23.1  

Consent of Independent Auditors  

We consent to the inclusion of our report dated April 24, 2002 (except for Note 1, as to which the date is July 1, 2002) with respect to the 
financial statements of Verizon's Alabama Operations and our report dated April 24, 2002, with respect to the financial statements of Verizon's 
Missouri Operations included in the Form 8-K of CenturyTel, Inc. filed August 13, 2002.  

 

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP 
New York, New York 
August 9, 2002 



EXHIBIT 99  

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE: FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT :  
August 1, 2002 Media: Annmarie Sartor 318.388.9671 annmarie.sartor@centurytel.com Investors: Tony Davis 318.388.9525 
tony.davis@centurytel.com  

CenturyTel Completes Sale of Wireless Operations  

MONROE, La. ... CenturyTel (NYSE symbol: CTL) completed the sale of its wireless business today to ALLTEL (NYSE symbol: AT), further 
positioning CenturyTel for growth in its local exchange telephone business.  

CenturyTel agreed March 19, 2002, to sell its wireless operations to ALLTEL for $1.65 billion in cash. CenturyTel previously provided 
wireless services in Arkansas, Louisiana, Michigan, Mississippi, Texas and Wisconsin. CenturyTel remains a local telephone, long distance, 
Internet and DSL provider in these states. CenturyTel will receive $1.57 billion in proceeds from this transaction, which excludes one minority-
owned market in which there is a cross-ownership issue. CenturyTel has also received approximately $11 million in proceeds from the sale of 
wireless interests to parties other than ALLTEL.  

Wireless contracts will be automatically transferred to ALLTEL. Although ALLTEL begins operating the wireless business today, it will use 
and bill customers under the CenturyTel name until ALLTEL completes a network and billing conversion later this year.  

"Today we close a successful chapter in CenturyTel's history," said Glen F. Post, III, president and CEO of CenturyTel. "Now we enter a new 
era as one of the leading pure play rural local exchange providers in the country."  

CenturyTel completed the acquisition of about 300,000 telephone lines from Verizon in Alabama on July 1. The company expects to complete 
the acquisition of about 360,000 telephone lines from Verizon in Missouri on August 31. After the Missouri transaction is completed, 
CenturyTel will serve approximately 2.5 million access lines.  

CenturyTel, Inc. provides communications services including local exchange, long distance, Internet access and data services to customers in 
22 states. The company, headquartered in Monroe, Louisiana, is publicly traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol CTL. 
CenturyTel is the 8th largest local exchange telephone company, based on access lines, in the United States. Visit CenturyTel's corporate Web 
site at (www.centurytel.com)  

 

End of Filing  
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